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VISION
Statement

United Brands Limited is
committed to being a profitable
customer-driven and socially
responsible organization. We
aim to become the leaders of our
industry and set benchmark for
others.

CORE

Values

Integrity
Courage
Passion
Partnership
Excellence
Innovation
Responsibility
Humility

MISSION
Statement

We strive to be the best
distributor and want to serve as
an industry standard. We
empower our employees for
continuous growth and enable
them to ensure success for our
partner companies, principals
and customers.

OVERALL
Corporate Strategy

United Brands Limited is a
dynamic organization and plans
to frow by expanding the
coverage network further within
Pakistan. Expansion plans also
include introducing new
international brands in the local
market.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Rashid Abdulla

Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan

Mr. Syed Nadeem Ahmed*
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala
Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas*
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla

Mr. Asad Abdulla

Chairman

Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

*(During the year Mr. Faisal Farooq and Mr. Khalid Dar
resigned from the board and in place of outgoing directors,
Mr. Syed Nadeem Ahmed and Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas were
appointed respectively).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan Chairman
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala Member
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla Member

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan Chairman
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala Member
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla Member

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Sharig Ahmed

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Abbas Ali*

* (During the year, Mr. Saad Lakhani resigned from the post
of Company Secretary & in his place, Mr. Abbas Ali was
appointed as new Company Secretary).

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman,
Chartered Accountants

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

A.F. Ferguson & Company,
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Amin Ansari Law Associates
BANKERS

Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Silkbank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Al Baraka Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

1st Floor, One IBL Center,

Block No. 7 & 8, DMMCHS,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75530
Tel: 37170183,

Fax: 35635530, 35682772

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, SMCHS
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400
WEBSITE

www.ubrands.biz
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NOTICE OF 56t ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING OF
UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that 56th Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s. United Brands Limited will be held on
Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 02:00 p.m. at Ground Floor, One IBL Center, Block No. 7 & 8, DMMCHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October28, 2019.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt annual audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020 together with
the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for the next financial year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. The present auditors,
M/s. A.FFerguson & Company, Chartered Accountants, retired and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-appointment. The board has recommended the re-appointment of A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants,
as the auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021,

OTHER BUSINESS

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By the order of the board

Compan@y

Date: October 06, 2020
Place:Karachi

Notes
A. Book closure:

i.  The share transfer books will remain closed from October 21, 2020 to October 27, 2020(both days inclusive).
Transfers in good order, received at the office of Company’s Share Registrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited, CDC House, 99 — B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 by close of the business
on October 20, 2020will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the annual general meeting.

B. Participation in General Meeting:

i.  All members/shareholders are entitled to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting. A member/
shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf. The proxy needs to be a member of the
Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company’s Registered Office: 1st Floor, One IBL
Center, Block No. 7 & 8, DMMCHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 75530 not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
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i. Inpursuance of Circular No. 1. of 2000 of SECP dated January 26, 2000 the beneficial owners of the shares registered
in the name of Central Depository Company (CDC) and/or their proxies are required to produce their Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or passport for identification purpose at the time of attending the meeting. The form of
proxy must be submitted with the Company within the stipulated time, duly witnessed by two persons whose names,
addresses and CNIC numbers must be mentioned on the form, along with attested copies of the CNIC or the passport
of the beneficial owner and the proxy.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/ Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

iii. Member are requested to intimate any changes in addresses immediately to Company’s Share Registrar, Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi —
74400.

D. Request for Video conference facility:

In term of SECP’s Circular No. 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014 read with the provisions contained under section 134(1)
(b) of the Act, if the Company receives request /demand from members holding in aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10
days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city, subject to availability
of such facility in that city.

I/We, of being a member of the United Brands
Limited, holder of ordinary shares as per registered folio # hereby opt for video conference
facility at

Signature of Member (s)

The company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least five days before the date of
annual general meeting along with the complete information necessary to enable them to access the facility.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

(Under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017)

An annual evaluation of the Board of Directors’ overall performance is conducted in compliance with the requirement of the
Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act, 2017. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board
of Directors’ (the Board) performance is measured in the context of overall corporate objectives and governance structure
of the Company. For the financial year ended 30 June 2020, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness has been
assessed as ‘Satisfactory’.

The following sections summarize how the overall performance of the Board is assessed as satisfactory in achieving
Company’s objectives:

1. Corporate governance structure and Compliance with regulations

The Company has a well-developed corporate governance system which is the combination of processes
established and executed by the Board that are reflected in the Company’s structure with the aim of achieving
objectives of the Company as a whole to ensure compliance with all the statutory and regulatory requirements
applicable upon the Company.

General Meeting(s) is the highest decision-making body in the Company. The shareholders are responsible for
appointing the Board Members at the General Meeting of the Company. The shareholders also appoint the external
auditors in General Meeting(s) who report to the shareholders on the annual and half yearly financial performance of
the Company in their annual auditors’ report and half-yearly review report respectively.

2. Board of Directors

The appointment, roles and responsibilities of the Board of the Company are outlined in Articles of Association of the
Company. Throughout the year, the membership balance criteria set down in the Code of Corporate Governance in
relation to executive, non-executive and independent members of the Board was maintained by the Company
together with an appropriate level of skills, experience and capabilities across the membership.

The Board of the Company complies with all relevant rules and regulations. The Board comprises of well-known
business professionals who add real value to the Board through their expertise, experience and strong value systems.
The Board has laid down policies and procedures to ensure a professional corporate environment that promotes
timely disclosure, accountability, high ethical standards, and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
corporate governance.

During the year under review, the Board has effectively discharged its responsibilities towards the Company and
participated in all strategic affairs diligently. All quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results were thoroughly
reviewed and the Board extended its guidance to the management on regular basis. The Board also played a key role
in monitoring of management performance and focus on major risk areas.
3. Committees to the Board

The Board’s Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee have also discharged their
responsibilities as per relevant laws, norms and best practices throughout the year. The Board carefully monitors their
performance on periodic basis.

4. Vision, mission and values

The Board members are familiar with the current vision, mission and values and support them.
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5. Engagement in strategic planning

The Board has a clear understanding of its stakeholders and a strategic vision of how the organisation should be
evolving over the next three to five years. The Board identifies goals and targets for the management in all major
performance areas and key indicators for tracking progress.

6. Formulation of policies
The Board has established policies that cover all essential areas of the Board'’s responsibilities.
7. Monitoring of organisation's business activities

The Board is aware of the Company’s current business activities and is updated with respect to achievement of
Company’s objectives, goals, strategies and financial performance through regular presentations by the
management, internal and external auditors and other independent consultants.

8. Monitoring of financial resources

The Board is knowledgeable about key aspects relating to managing the financial resources of the Company and
provides appropriate direction and oversight on a timely basis. The Board ensures that the budget reflects the
priorities established in the annual plan and the strategic plan. The Board complies with regulations governing the
external audit/ review of annual and interim accounts of the Company and pays due consideration to the
recommendations made by the external auditors and internal auditors from time to time.

Rashid Abdulla
Chairman
29-Sep-20
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of United Brands Limited take pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. The Directors’ Report is prepared in accordance with Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

Principal Activities

United Brands Limited is engaged in distribution of fast-moving consumer goods and allied products. The portfolio
included baby range, chocolates, confectionaries, beverages, cereals, snacks, deodorants, cosmetics and other similar
products.

Summary of Financial Performance m 2019

(Rupees in thousand)

Revenue 3,270,644 4,048,617
Gross profit 834,980 1,028,180
Gross profit as a percentage of revenue 25.5% 25.4%
Operating profit / (loss) (2,638) (47,102)
Loss after taxation (255,676) (549,914)

Financial Performance:

Revenue of company has decreased by 19% as compared to last year. The main reason for the decrease is due to
discontinuation of some imported business lines and transfer of transportation and warehousing business to IBL Logistics
(Private) Limited — a subsidiary company.

During the year, following businesses were discontinued from Company’s portfolio which resulted in decreasing revenue
by PKR 568 Millionin current year.

1) Johnson & Johnson 2) Mars Confectionary
3) IFFCO 4) Haleeb
5) Murree Brewery 6) Lindt

Operating expenses have decreased by PKR 204 million majorly due to discontinuation of businesses. Major decrease
is seen in salaries, bond charges, freight and logistics, vehicle running expense and marketing expense.

Operating loss has decreased significantly from -1.2% to 0.02% as compared to last year. Cost control measures taken
during the year has also assisted in decrease in overall expenses. Finance cost has decreased by PKR 200 million due to
reduction in company’s borrowings.

Holding Company
International Brands Limited is the holding Company of United Brands Limited. As at June 30, 2020, International Brands
Limited held 88,200,462 shares of PKR 10 each (96.08%).

Basic / diluted loss per share
Basic / diluted loss per share were PKR 2.79 (2019: PKR5.99)

Impact on Environment:
Company is not engaged in any business activity that has negative consequence on the environment.
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Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

Performance with integrity is central to operating at United Brands Limited. The Board of Directors have adopted a statement of
ethics and business practices. All employees are informed and aware of it and are required to observe these rules of conduct
in relation to business and regulations.

Principal Risks and uncertainties

Principal risk associated with the entity includes:

Nature of Risk Description

Business Risk Discontinuation of Business resulting in revenue and profit loss

Operational / Business Risk | Rupee devaluation resulting in exchange loss

Liquidity Risk High interest cost on borrowings.

Shortage of funds affecting timely financing of operating & investing activities.

Operational / Business Risk | Piling of stock leading to product expiries, increased storage cost and working capital
blockage.
Loss of revenue due to parallel imports

Regulatory Risk Change in custom tariffs of taxes, duties, regulations & foreign exchange rate variation
deteriorating the margin and profitability.

Risk Management

The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on minimizing potential adverse effects on the Company’s
performance. The overall risk assessment of the Company is undertaken by the Senior Management, governed under the
supervision of Group’s Corporate Centre, the results of which are shared with the Board of Directors. Risk identification,
assessment and management process entails identifying, evaluating and addressing strategic, financial, commercial and
operational risks faced by the Company. Based on the risk assessment, key challenges are addressed and opportunities
identified, action plans developed and executed to achieve the long-term strategic objectives of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Despite incurring losses in past few years, the Company continued to play its role in the area of CSR as we at United Brands
belief in striving and keeping the balance between business and contribution to society.

In words of great Jaffery Sachs;
Without restoring an ethos of social responsibility, there can be no meaningful and sustained economic recovery.

Composition of Board on 30th June 2020

Directors No. of Directors

Total No. of Directors 7
a. Male 7
b. Female 0

Board Composition No. of Directors

a. Independent Directors 1

b. Executive Directors 1

C. Other Non-Executive Directors 5
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Committee

Audit Committee

Name of Directors

Mr. Hassan Tarig Khan

Designation

Chairman

Mr. Ayaz Abdulla

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala

Non-Executive Director

HR Committee

Mr. Hassan Tarig Khan

Chairman

Mr. Ayaz Abdulla

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala

Non-Executive Director

Company has held election of board of directors on 27th August 2020 and following is the composition of board;

Directors No. of Directors

Total No. of Directors 7
a. Male 6
b. Female 1

Board Composition

No. of Directors

a. Independent Directors 2
Executive Directors
C. Other Non-Executive Directors
Committee Name of Directors Designation
Audit Committee Ms. Tayyaba Rasheed Chairman

Mr. Syed Nadeem Ahmed

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala

Non-Executive Director

HR Committee

Mr. Rashid Abdulla

Chairman

Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan

Independent Director

Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas

Chief Executive Officer

Meetings of the Board of Directors
During the Year 2020, Five Board meetings were held and attended as follows:

Name of Directors Meeting Attended
Mr. Rashid Abdulla

Mr. Ayaz Abdulla

Mr. Asad Abdulla

Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan

Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala
Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas
Mr. Syed Nadeem Ahmed
Mr. Faisal Faroog*

Mr. Khalid Dar*

- N MDA DMOTWOWWW
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Fee paid to directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings during the year amounted to Rs. 0.250 million (2019:
Rs. 0.82 million).

During the year Mr. Faisal Farooq and Mr. Khalid Dar resigned from the board and in place Mr. Syed Nadeem Ahmed and
Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas were appointed.

Audit Committee

The committee comprises of three members, all are non-executive Directors and the Chairman of the Committee is an inde-
pendent director.

The terms of reference of the Committee have been determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with the guide-
lines provided in the listing Regulations and advised to the Committee for compliance.An independent audit function
reporting to the Board’s audit committee reviews risks and controls across the organization.

During the year 2019-20, four audit committee meetings were held and attended as follows:

Members Meeting Attended
Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan 4
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala 3
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla 3

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
The committee comprises of three members; all are non-executive Directors including the Chairman of the Committee.
Directors Training:

During the year, no training was carried out, however the Company has plans to conduct required trainings of director
during the next fiscal year.

Financial statements and auditors

The financial statements of the Company have been audited and approved without qualification by the auditors, A.F.
Ferguson, Chartered Accountants. Further, the present auditors, A.F. Ferguson, Chartered Accountants, retired and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses recommendation of the Audit Committee for
their reappointment as Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021, at a fee to be mutually agreed.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Value of Investments of Provident Fund

The fair value of investment of provident fund as per its financial statements at June 30, 2020 is PKR 15.650 million (June
30, 2019 is PKR 15.96million).

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

- The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

- Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
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- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

- The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan.

- The Company maintains a sound internal control system which gives reasonable assurance against any material
misstatements or loss. The internal control is regularly reviewed. This has been formulized by the Board’s Audit
Committee and updated as and when needed.

- There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

- There has been no material departure from the best practices of Code of Corporate Governance as detailed in the
listing regulations.

Future Outlook
The Company has suffered losses primarily because of exchange losses, increase in interest cost and discontinuation of
businesses, however the board and management is confident that Company shall identify, undertake and avail areas of

opportunities for increasing both revenue and profitability in next years.

We also take this opportunity to thank our employees for their continued contribution in the achievement of Company’s
results.

Shareholding Information

The Company’s shares are traded on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The pattern of Shareholding as at June 30, 2020 and other
related information is set out on page 101 to 108.

During the year, two of the directors Mr. Asad Abdulla and Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala sold shares of the company which
were duly informed and reported to the regulatory authorities.

Except for the above and transfer of qualifying shares, none of the Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children carried out any trades in the shares of the Company.

N ___.J;:l
} //
Karachi. /é
Date: September 29, 2020 Syed|Nadeem Ahmed Qaisar Abbas
Diregtor - Chief Executive
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Operational Results: ---Amount in ‘000---

Sales 3,270,644 | 4,048,617 | 3,776,649 | 1,389,745 | 1,483,737 | 1,342,485
Gross Profit 834,980 | 1,028,180 983,565 342,931 229,244 191,265
Operating (Loss)/ Profit (2,638) (47,102) 252,997 69,541 57,705 31,736
Financial Charges (125,091) | (324,708) 126,902 15,395 6,076 9,932
(Loss) / Profit before Taxation (127,729) | (371,810) 126,095 54,146 51,629 21,904
(Loss) / Profit after Taxation (255,676) | (549,914) (29,214) 6,021 28,441 12,248
Proposed Dividend - - - 5,400 - 10,800

Balance Sheet:

---Amount in ‘000---

Shareholders’ Equity 51,334 307,010 876,541 101,155 95,134 77,493
Non-Current Liabilities 9,012 - - 212,000 - -

Current Liabilities 1,594,808 | 2,157,356 | 1,747,529 | 1,455,424 726,256 643,916
Non-Current Assets 38,185 28,817 30,336 1,349 1,492 2,267
Current Assets 1,616,969 | 2,435,549 | 2,593,734 | 1,767,230 819,898 719,142

Financial Ratios:

---Amount in ‘000---

Turnover on (Loss) / Profit before Tax -3.91% -9.18% 3.34% 3.90% 3.48% 1.63%
Proposed Dividend - - - 5% - 10%
Return on Assets -15.45% -22.31% -1.11% 0.34% 3.46% 1.69%
Return on Equity -498.06% | -179.12% -3.33% 5.95% 29.90% 15.81%
(Loss) / Earnings per Share (2.79) (5.99) (0.56) 0.13 0.62 0.27
Market value per Share 26.44 14.30 52.08 191.00 55.49 86.54
Book Value per Share 0.56 3.34 9.55 9.37 8.79 7.18
Current Ratio 1.01 1.13 1.48 1.21 1.13 1.12
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of United Brands Limited (the Company) for the
year ended June30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 360f the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility
is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of
the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure
compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June30, 2020.

S 4 Ca.

A.F.Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Dated: October 5, 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPAMNIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of company: United Brands Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2020

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner

1 The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:
a) Male: ¥ (seven)
b) Femals; -
2, The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category Names
Independent Director Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Rashid Abdulla

Mr. 5. Nadeem Ahmed

Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala

Mr. Asad Abdulla

Mr. Ayaz Abdulla
Executive Director Mr. Syed Qaisar Abbas
Female Director »

The election of the directors was due before June 24, 2020. However, the Company has reparted
the impediment in holding exira ordinary general meeating called on June 18, 2020 for election of
directors to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through letter dated June 09,
2020. The election of directors was held on August 27, 2020 and composition of directors has been
changed in line with new Regulations.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company;

4, The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps heve been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures:

5 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant palicies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company:

€. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

7 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a direclor

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board,
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. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

a The Board has not arranged for any Director’s Training Program {(OTP) during the current year as
five of the directors already have DTF's certification;

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with refevant requirements of the Regulations,

11, Chief Financial Officer and Chiel Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Comm
Narne Category
Mr. Hasan Tang Khan Chairman
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala Member
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla Member
HR and Remuneration Committee
Name Category
Mr. Hasan Tarig Khan Chairman
Mr. Zubair Razzak Palwala Member
Mr. Ayaz Abdulla Member

13 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised |
to the committee for compliance, |

14, The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Augit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2020
B HR & Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30, 2020,

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit functicn to Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Charterad
Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant wilh the policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a salisfactory
rating under the Quality Contral Review pregram of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the pariners of the
firm involved in the audit are nol a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary or director of the company,
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The statutory auditors or the persons associated wilth them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard,

18, We confirm that all requirements of the regulations 36,7 8,27 32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been compled with,

19, Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than requlations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and
36 (non- mandatory requirements) are below:

5. No Requirement Explanation Reg.
No

1 Thae Board may constitute a | The responsibilities as prescribed forthe | 29
separale committee, designed as | nomination committee are being taken
the nomination committee, of such | care of at Board level as and when
number and class of directors, as it | needed, hence a separale committes is
may deem appropriate In it | not considered necessary.

circumslances.

2 The Board may constitute the risk | The Beoard has not constituted a risk 20
management committee, of such | management committee as  risk
number and class of direclors, as it | management framework is managed at
may deem appropriate in  its | Company's level by the execulive
circumslances, to carry out & review | committee headed by Chief Executive
of effectiveness of risk management | Officer and the CEQ apprises the Beard
precedures and present a report to | accordingly.

the Board.

3 The Company may post on ils | As the regulation provides concession
website key elements of its | with respect to disclosure of significant | 35(1)
significant policies Including but not | policies on the website, few policies have
limited to the following: been uploaded on the Company's
website, however, the Company shall
review and place key elements of other
policies, if considered necessary

i, Communication and
disclosure policy,

I, Risk management policy;
iil Internal control policy;
. Whistle blowing policy,

v Corporate social
responsibility /
sustainabiliy/
environmental, social and
governance related policy.

4 The Chief Executive Officer may be | Subsequent to year end, the Chief | 28(2)
included as a member of the HR & | Executive Officer has been included in
Remuneration Commiltes. HR & Remuneration Commitlee as 2
mamber
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On behailf of the Board

Vb &

=
Zubair Razzak Palwala Syed Caisar ‘Ahhaa
Director Chief Executive Officar

A\
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of United Brands Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsclidated financial statements of United Brands Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial pesition a5 at June 30, 2020, and
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a surmmary of significant accounting pelicies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsalidated statement of financial position, the unconsclidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
repaorting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (RIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a tfrue and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Cur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Eoard for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accounfanis as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

A FFERGUSON & CO,, Chartered Accountants, a member firm af the Prol network
State Life Building No. 1-C, 1.1, Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-mgoo0, Pakistan
Tel: 492 (21) 32426682-6/92426711-5; Fax: +62 (21) 32415007/32427938/ 324 24740; <uwnvepwe.com/pk>

= KARACHI= LAHORE = ISLAMABAD

—————————
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Following is the Key Audit Matter:

5. No.
(i)

Key Audit Matter

Impact of COVID - 18
{Refer note 1)

Due to COVID-18 pandemic and resulting
lockdown in the country since March 2020,
the business activities in the country have
been adversely affected. In March 2020, staff
attendance at the Company's head office
and sales offices was reduced, however
essential goods continued to be sold and
distributed. Further, due to this closure,
various year-end activities relating to
financial closing were impacted. This
situation affected the overall audit strategy.
In relation to the accounting and reporting
cbligations, management assessed the
following significant areas for incorporating
any potential impact of COVID-19 in tha
unconsalidated financial statements:

- expected credil losses (ECL) under
IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments":

- provisions snd contingent liabilities
under 1AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’
including onerous contracts’;

- the nel realisable value (NRV) of
inventory under 1AS 2, ‘Inventories": and

= going concern assumplion used for the
preparation of the unconsolidated
financial statements,

The COVID-18 pandemic is a significant
development during the year having impact
on audit strategy and its execulion and
involved  assessment of management
judgements in the preparation of
unconsolidated  financial  statements.
Therefore, we considered it to be a key audit
matler.

2 of 4 pages
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Cur audit procedures, amongst others

included the following:

- Obtained an overall understanding of the
changes in financial reporfing process
and underlying controls in order to
determine the appropriate audit strategy;

- Utilised audit software for review and
supervision of audit work,

- Obtained management's plan regarding
execution of physical and virtual inventory
check;

- Observed physical and virtual inventary
check camed out by management
subsequent to year-end and tested the
roll-back of the inventory quantities
prepared by management on a sample
basis;

- For confirmation received through email,
the authenticity of the confirmations was
ensured by performing  alternate
procedure such as making telephone
calls to confirming parties,

- Assessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking facters under the COWVID-18
siluation used by management in
preparing ECL model;

- Evaluated management's assessment as
to whether any provisions were required
lo be recorded as a result of COVID-19;

-  Obtained the computation of NRV and
checked its reasonableness;

- Evaluated management's going concem
assessment by reviewing the approved
budgetifuture cash flow forecast and
management plans and assessed
whether going concern assumplion is
appropriate; and

- Reviewed the adeguacy of the
disclosures made by the Company under
applicable accounting and reporting
standards,

Independent Auditor's Report
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Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated and unconsclidated financial
statements and our auditor's reports thereon.

Cur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsclidated financial statemenis or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a malerial
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repert that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statemenis that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror,

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but lo do so.

The Board of Direclors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit canducted in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconselidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsclidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal contral,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

1
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s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
fo the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's repert. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underiying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signifizant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement thal we have complied with relevant elhical
requirements regarding independance, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, related safaguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the unconsclidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. Ve describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we furlher report that in cur opinion:

{a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Acl,
2017 (XX of 2017);

(b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returmns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business, and

(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980),

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audilor's report is
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

LNFPO L G
A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date; October §, 2020
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary
Long term deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and advances

Current tax asset

Tax refunds due from government - sales tax
Cash and bank balances

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Share capital
Accumulated losses

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

Accrued mark-up

Short term financing

Total liabilities
Contingency and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

~N o O M

-
OLO@

11

12

13

14
13
15
16

17

| 2020 [NEGE
(Rupees in ‘000)

11,039 3,381
232 322
25,000 25,000
1,914 114
38,185 28,817
709,250 1,102,071
659,224 606,896
143,456 469,483
36,003 52,413
27,242 3,771
41,794 200,915
1,616,969 2,435,549
1,655,154 2,464,366
918,000 918,000
(866,666) (610,990)
51,334 307,010

9,012 -
816,126 666,075

4,737 -
353 371
7,140 37,641
766,452 1,453,269
1,594,808 2,157,356
1,603,820 2,157,356
1,655,154 2,464,366

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements

i

a2

Syed Qaisar Abbas
Chief Executive Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(Rupees in ‘000’)

Revenue from contracts with customers 18 3,270,644 4,048,617
Cost of sales and services 19 (2,435,664) (3,020,437)
Gross profit 834,980 1,028,180
Marketing and distribution expenses 20 (606,826) (734,333)
Administrative and general expenses 21 (101,603) (122,033)
Loss allowance on trade receivables 9.1.3 (27,134) (502)
Other operating expenses 22 (141,333) (220,463)
Other income 23 39,278 2,049
Loss from operations (2,638) (47,102)
Finance costs 24 (125,091) (324,708)
Loss before income tax (127,729) (371,810)
Income tax expense 25 (127,947) (178,104)
Loss for the year (255,676) (549,914)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive loss (255,676) (549,914)
(Rupees)
Basic loss per share 26 (2.79) (5.99)

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala Shariq/ Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Increase in long-term deposits

Income taxes paid

Mark-up paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment in advance for capital work in progress
Payment for acquisition of property and equipment
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Proceeds from long term financing

(Repayment of) / proceeds from short term financing
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala

Chief Executive Officer
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(Rupees in ‘000)
27 804,086 (335,768)
(1,800) -
(111,537) (177,366)
(168,099) (107,153)
522,650 (620,287)
(8,449) -
(236) (2,080)
- (171)
(8,685) (2,251)
(18) (220)
13,749 -
(686,814) 617,948
(673,083) 617,728
(159,118) (4,810)
170,705 175,515
28 11,587 170,705
Shariq/ Ahmed
Director Chief Financial Officer




UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Share capital

Issued, Accumulated

subscribed loss UeLEl =5 k)
and paid up
capital
< (Rupees 000) >
Balance as at June 30, 2018 918,000 (41,459) 876,541
Recognition of expected credit
losses on adoption of IFRS 9 - (19,617) (19,617)
Balance as at July 01, 2018 918,000 (61,076) 856,924
Total comprehensive loss
for the year ended June 30, 2019 - (549,914) (549,914)
Balance as at July 01, 2019 918,000 (610,990) 307,010
Total comprehensive loss
for the year ended June 30, 2020 - (255,676) (255,676)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 918,000 (866,666) 51,334

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala Shariq/ Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1 Legal status and operations

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on March 13, 1965 as Batlay Match Industries Limited under the repealed
Company Act, 1913. The Company was renamed as UDL Industries Limited on March 16, 1987 under the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company was again renamed as United Brands Limited, a Public Limited Company
on April 5, 2006 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The shares of the Company are quoted on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange.

The Company is a subsidiary of International Brands Limited, which is also the Company's ultimate parent.

The principal activities of the Company are trading and distribution of consumer goods and allied products. Subsequent
to year end, the Company has started production of safety razors through toll manufacturing.

The geographical locations and addresses of Company's business units are as under:

- Registered office of the Company is situated at 1st Floor, One IBL Center, Block No. 7 & 8, Delhi Mercantile Muslim
Cooperative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi; and

- The Company has various sale offices and distribution warehouses. Detailed list is provided in note 34.
1.2 Impact of COVID-19 on the unconsolidated financial statements

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human lives but has
also adversely impacted the global economy. On March 20, 2020, the Government of Sindh announced a temporary lock
down as a measure to reduce spread of COVID-19. Complying with the government directive, the Company temporarily
reduced its operations from March 23, 2020, keeping in view safety of its employees, customers and other stakeholders.

The Company implemented all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to continue its business in order
to maintain its business performance despite slowed down economic activity. The lockdown has caused disruptions in
supply chain including supply to the customers resulting in a decline in sales. It is also expected that the outbreak may
result in lower demand in future. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these
developments on these unconsolidated financial statements, including but not limited to the following areas:

- expected credit losses under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments';

- the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, Inventories';

- provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
including onerous contracts'; and

- going concern assumption used for the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements.

According to the management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19 on
these unconsolidated financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out
below.
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2.1 Basis of preparation
2.1.1 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.1.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. There are no matters involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material impact on the amounts
disclosed in the unconsolidated financial statements.

There have been no critical judgments made by the Company's management in applying the accounting policies that
would have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements.

2.1.3 Changes in accounting standards and interpretations

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became
effective during the year and are relevant

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. This standard replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17 'Leases'. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the statement of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short term and low value leases.

The impact of changes laid down by this standard are detailed in note 3.

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or
after July 1, 2019 are considered not to be relevant for the Company's unconsolidated financial statements and
hence have not been detailed here.
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c¢) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
relevant but not effective

The new standards, certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2020 are considered not to be relevant for the Company's unconsolidated financial statements
and hence have not been detailed here.

2.2 Overall valuation policy

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise
disclosed in the accounting policies below.

2.3 Property and equipment

These are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (if any) except capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost.

Capital work-in-progress consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and intangible
assets in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant operating assets category as and
when assets are available for use.

Depreciation is charged to income using the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its
estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 4.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on acquisition
is charged from the month of addition whereas no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. Assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The carrying values of operating assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are
retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.4 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and that the cost of such asset can be measured reliably. These are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment, if any.

Computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful life using the straight line method.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

2.5 Investment in subsidiary

The Company has investment in a subsidiary company. Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost.
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2.6 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the First-In-First out (FIFO)
basis. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

Stock in transits are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
2.7 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing component when they are recognised at fair value. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. Refer note 2.19 for a description of the Company’s
impairment policies.
2.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of
the unconsolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with banks,
cash and cheques held at branches and running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements availed from the banks.
2.9 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value.

2.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for goods and services received.

2.11 Lease liability and right-of-use asset

Policy effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019: leases are recognised as right-of-use assets
with corresponding lease liabilities at the date on which leased assets are available for use by the Company except for
leases of short term or low value.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension option or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments over the period of lease term and that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using interest rate implicit in the lease or the Company's incremental
borrowing rate.
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Lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate which are initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date, amounts expected
to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company
is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising that option. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term
only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lease liability
is also remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payment.

The lease liability is remeasured when the Company reassesses the reasonable certainty of exercising the extension or
termination option upon occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change in circumstances, or when there
is a change in assessment of an option to purchase underlying asset, or when there is a change in amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or when there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payment. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income if
the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When there is a change in scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, it is accounted for as a lease modification. The lease modification is accounted for as a separate
lease if modification increases the scope of lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and the
consideration for lease increases by an amount that is commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
adjusted to reflect the circumstances of the particular contracts, if any. When the lease modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the lease liability is remeasured and corresponding adjustment is made to right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the
costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which
the asset is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost model. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line
method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
lease liability.

As detailed in note 3, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient of not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The
lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.
2.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.
2.13 Income tax

i. Current

The charge for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account
tax credits and rebates available, if any.
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ii. Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the unconsolidated financial statements. Deferred tax
liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account.

Deferred tax is determined at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled based on the tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

2.14 Employee benefits
i.  Defined contribution plan
The Company operates a recognised provident fund for its eligible and permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary. The Company
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
ii. Leave encashment - compensated absences
The Company accounts for employees' leave encashment at the end of December each year on the basis of 15
days of unavailed leave balance of each employee. The liability recognised in this respect is based on one half of
the employee's last drawn basic salary.
2.15 BRevenue recognition
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when control of the products has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the product. Revenue is

recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers i.e when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the customer.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit term of upto 60 days, which is consistent
with the market practice.

2.16 Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred and subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use when the borrowing costs are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Such borrowing costs
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Borrowings payable within next twelve months are classified as current liabilities.
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2.17 Foreign currency transactions and translation

The unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. The figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, if any, as at the reporting date are translated into Rupees
using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses, if any, are included in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.18 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to shareholders is accounted for in the period in which the dividend is approved.

2.19 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”"),

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or

- at amortised cost.
The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other
than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
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- at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), or
- at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income/(loss).

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed
in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realised and unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the
Company'’s own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial asset

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised
cost at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following, which are measured at 12 months ECLSs;

- bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased since the inception.

- employee receivables.

- other short term receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since inception.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when it is more than 90 days past due.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible defaults events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12 month ECLs are portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and cash flows that

the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
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Derecognition
i) Financial assets

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to
another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition,
on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of
an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

ii) Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.20 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i)IFRS 16 - Leases

Effective July 01, 2019, the Company has adopted IFRS 16, "Leases" which replaces existing guidance on accounting for
leases, including IAS 17 'Leases', IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease', SIC-15 'Operating
Leases- Incentive and SIC-27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a Lease'. IFRS 16
introduces a single, on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset
representing its right-of-use of the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease
payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or
operating leases. The accounting polices relating to the Company's right-of-use asset and lease liability are disclosed in
note 2.11 of the unconsolidated financial statements.

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

- By accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at July 01, 2019 as
short-term leases; and

- By electing not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application.Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition date, the Company relied on its arrangement made applying IAS 17 and
interpretation for determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease.

The Company has evaluated the impact of the new standard and has concluded that there is no impact that needs to be
given effect in these unconsolidated financial statements. However at the time of interim reporting on December 31, 2019
the management decided not to use the practical expedients stated above and in note 2.11.
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41

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets - note 4.1
Capital work in progress - note 4.3

Operating assets and right-of-use assets

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2020

Opening net book value (NBV)
Additions (at cost)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2

Closing net book value (NBV)

Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2020

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value (NBV)

Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2019

Opening net book amount
Additions (at cost)

Disposals (at NBV)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2

Closing net book value (NBV)

Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2019

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value (NBV)

Useful life in years

2019

(Rupees ‘000)

2,590 3,381
8,449 -
11,039 3,381
Leasehold Furniture Office and Motor
Improvements and other Vehicles Total
Fittings Equipments
<< (Rupees ‘000) >
- 384 2,997 - 3,381
- - 236 - 236
- (45) (982) - (1,027)
- 339 2,251 - 2,590
1,698 1,518 13,751 2,842 19,809
(1,698) (1,179) (11,500) (2,842) (17,219)
- 339 2,251 - 2,590
- 902 3,489 - 4,391
- 201 1,879 - 2,080
- (659) (1,378) - (2,037)
- (60) (993) - (1,053)
- 384 2,997 - 3,381
1,698 1,518 13,515 2,842 19,573
(1,698) (1,134) (10,518) (2,842) (16,192)
- 384 2,997 - 3,381
10 10 5 5
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4.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows: (Rupees "000)

Cost of services - note 19.2 - 136
Marketing and distribution expenses - note 20 802 679
Administrative and general expenses - note 21 225 238

1,027 1,053

4.3 Capital work-in-progress

Balance  Additions Transfers Balance Balance Additions Transfers Balance

as atJuly during the as at as at July during the as at June
01, 2019 year June 30, 01,2018 year 30, 2019
2020
< Rupees '000 >
Machinery items -note 4.4 - 8,449 - 8,449

4.4  Machinery items represent moulds and cylinders having cost of Rs. 7.70 million (2019: Nil) and Rs. 0.75 million (2019:
Nil) which are located at premises of Afeef Packages (Private) Limited and Fazleesons (Private) Limited respectively, as
these are being used for manufacturing of the Company's products as disclosed in note 1.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Rupees ‘000)

Computer software - note 5.1 232 322

5.1 Computer software

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value 322 699
Addition during the year - 171

Disposals (at NBV) - (85)
Asset written off - (373)
Amortisation charge (90) (90)
Net book value 232 322
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 452 452
Accumulated amortisation (220) (130)
Net book value 232 322
Useful life in years 5 5

6. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Subsidiary company (at cost) - note 6.1 25,000 25,000
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6.1

71

8.1

8.2

9.1

The above investment represents investment in IBL logistics (Pvt.) Limited (the subsidiary). The subsidiary was
incorporated on 23 April 2018. The Company beneficially owns 100% of the share capital of the subsidiary.

The subsidiary was incorporated in Pakistan and its principal place of business is 1st Floor, One IBL Center, Block
No. 7 & 8, Delhi Mercantile Muslim Cooperative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS (Rupees ‘000)

Long term deposits - note 7.1 1,914 114

As at June 30, 2020, this includes rent deposit amounting to Rs. 0.114 million (2019: Rs. 0.114 million) and against
security deposit to Pakistan State Oil Limited for fuel card facility of Rs. 1.8 million (2019: Nil). These facilities are
given to the employees in accordance with the terms of employment. These deposits do not carry any mark up

arrangement.

INVENTORIES (Rupees ‘000)

Finished goods:

in hand - notes 8.1 & 8.2 550,823 558,005
in transit - note 8.2 158,427 544,066
709,250 1,102,071

These include stock-in-trade amounting to Nil (2019: Rs. 30.63 million) held with third party.

As at June 30, 2020, this includes inventory of Johnson & Johnson Middle East FZ-LLC amounting to Rs. 38.77
million (2019: Rs. 119.29 million) in hand and Rs. 111.65 million in transit (2019: Rs. 331.38 million) out of which
inventory having carrying value of Rs. 87.44 million will be recovered through the inventory transfer agreement.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - unsecured ‘
(Rupees ‘000)

Trade receivables - note 9.1 449,136 252,551
Other receivables - note 9.2 210,088 354,345
659,224 606,896

Trade receivables - unsecured

Considered good

Related party - note 9.1.1 1,591 8,268
Others - note 9.1.2 447,545 244,283
Considered doubtful 54,099 26,965
503,235 279,516
Less: Loss allowance on doubtful receivables - note 9.1.3 (54,099) (26,965)
449,136 252,551
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9.1.1 As at June 30, 2020, age analysis of trade receivables from related parties is as follows:

Name of related party Gross Past due Provision Reversal of Amount  Net amount Maximum
amount amount for doubtful provision  due written due amount
due receivables  for doubtful off outstanding
receivables at any time
during the
year
< (Rupees '000) >
The Searle Company Limited 633 633 - - - 633 34,423
IBL Logistics (Private) Limited 958 958 - - - 958 958
1,591 1,591 - - - 1,591 35,381

9.1.2 As at June 30, 2020, the age analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

(Rupees ‘000)

Not yet due 349,403 137,803
Past due
- Less than 30 days 40,121 61,035
- 311t0 90 days 51,956 31,033
- 90 to 360 days 17,215 24,189
- More than 360 days 42,949 17,063
152,241 133,320
501,644 271,123
9.1.3 Balance at beginning of the year 26,965 6,846
Recognition of expected credit losses - at initial application - 19,617
Charge during the year - net 27,134 502
Balance at end of the year 54,099 26,965

9.2 Other receivables - unsecured considered good

Related party - note 9.2.1 2,179 7,161
Others - note 9.2.2 207,909 347,184
210,088 354,345

9.2.1 This represents amount receivable from IBL Logistics (Private) Limited - subsidiary Company. The amount
represents claims in respect of payroll expenses paid on behalf of the subsidiary Company.

9.2.2 This represents receivable from principals in respect of stock claims, expenses and others.

9.2.3 As at June 30, 2020, age analysis of other receivables from related party is as follows:
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Name of related party Gross amount Pastdue Provision for Reversalof = Amountdue Netamount Maximum
due amount doubtful provision for written off due amount

receivables doubtful outstanding

receivables at any time

during the

year
< (Rupees '000) P>
IBL Logistics (Private) Limited 2,179 2,179 - - - - 2,179
2,179 2,179 - - - - 2,179
10. PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES - unsecured (Rupees '000)

Prepayments - note 10.1 323 101,652
Advances - note 10.2 143,133 367,831
143,456 469,483

10.1 PREPAYMENTS

Rent
- Deposit 298 1,011
- Prepaid - 108
Insurance - 193
Others 25 100,340
323 101,652
10.2 Advances - considered good
- Advance against letter of credit - note 10.2.1 102,875 333,328
- Advance against toll manufacturing - note 10.2.2 4,028 -
- Advance to employees 1,499 956
- Advance to suppliers 1,911 -
- Advance against marketing 353 -
- Others - note 10.2.3 32,467 33,547
143,133 367,831

10.2.1 This represents advances paid as 100% margin as per the BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2017 issued by the SBP under
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 for the import of goods.

10.2.2This represents advance to Afeef Packages (Private) Limited against toll manufacturing of products.
10.2.3 The amount represents advances given to clearing agents, shipping companies and regulatory authorities.

10.2.4These advances do not carry any mark up arrangement.
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11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES m 019

(Rupees ‘000)
Cash at banks

Current accounts - note 11.1 27,282 141,456
Savings accounts - note 11.2 2,254 20,216
29,536 161,672
Cash and cheques in hand 12,258 39,243
41,794 200,915

11.1 All current accounts are maintained under conventional banking system.

11.2 Savings accounts are maintained under Islamic banking system carrying profit sharing rate ranging from 0.05% to
3.25% (2019: 0.05%)

12. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital

Number of Shares m 2019
| 2020 | 2019 (Rupees ‘000)

100,000,000 100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

91,800,000 91,800,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 918,000 918,000
in cash

12.1 As at June 30, 2020, International Brands Limited together with its nominees holds 88,200,462 (June 30, 2019:

88,200,462) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

13. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Rupees ‘000)

Salary refinancing 13,749 -
less: current portion of salary refinancing (4,737) -
9,012 -

13.1 The Company has obtained payroll refinancing amounting to Rs.13.75 million in June 2020 for the payment of wages
and salaries for the months of April and May 2020. The loan is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments starting from
January 2021. It carries mark-up equal to SBP Refinance rate plus 3%.
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14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Rupees ‘000)
Trade creditors 439,151 155,688
Payable to International Brands Limited - note 14.1 5,154 8,032
Payable to IBL Operations (Private) Limited - note 14.2 241,945 9,793
Payable to The Searle Company Limited - note 14.3 12,118 44,427
Payable to IBL Logistics (Private) Limited - note 14.4 6,592 13,662
Payable to IBL Healthcare Limited - note 14.3 579 -
Accrued liabilities 83,267 88,858
Bills payables 6,530 311,065
Payable to employees' provident fund - note 14.5 1,689 2,180
Advances from customers 9,984 -
Withholding tax payable 136 1,343
EOBI and SESSI payable - 307
Other liabilities 8,981 30,720
816,126 666,075

14.1 This represents amount payable on account of corporate service charges.

14.2 This includes amount payable to IBL Operations (Private) Limited - associated company under agreement for
sharing of expenses relating to sales and administrative infrastructure. It also includes Rs. 117 million as funds
transferred to the Company to meet working capital requirements which do not carry mark-up and are repayable on
demand.

14.3 This represents amount payable in respect of goods purchased from related party.

14.4 This represents payment made by IBL Logistics (Private) Company on behalf of the Company.

14.5 Allinvestments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident fund have
been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions
specified thereunder.

15. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up comprises of mark-up on short term borrowings and on running finance.

(Rupees ‘000)

16. SHORT TERM FINANCING

Running finance under mark-up arrangement - note 16.1 30,207 30,210
Short term loans - notes 16.2 & 16.3 736,245 1,423,059
766,452 1,453,269

16.1 As at June 30, 2020, available running finance facility under mark-up arrangement from a commercial bank
amounted to Rs. 35 million (2019: Rs. 35 million). The arrangement is secured by way of pari passu charge over the
inventories and receivables of the Company with 25% margin.

The arrangement carries mark-up at the rate of 2.25% above one month KIBOR (2019: 2.25% above one month
KIBOR) to be determined on monthly basis.
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16.2 These represent short term loans obtained under financing arrangement from commercial banks. These are secured
by way of hypothecation charge over inventories and receivables of the Company with 25% margin. These are
maturing between July and December 2020.

The arrangements carry mark-up ranging from 0.15% and 2.5% above six months KIBOR to 1.75% above three
month KIBOR (2019: average six month KIBOR to 2.5% over three month KIBOR).

16.3 Following are the changes in the short term loans (i.e. for which cash flows have been classified as financing

activities in the statement of cashflows):

(Rupees ‘000)

Balance as at July 1 1,423,059 805,111

Disbursements during the year 2,406,115 3,738,473
Repayments during the year (3,092,929) (3,120,525)
Balance as at June 30 736,245 1,423,059

17. CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS
17.1 Contingency

During the year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a demand under section 137(2) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) dated January 31, 2020 for recovery of tax amounting to Rs. 94.66 million created
pursuant to order dated January 31, 2020 passed under section 122(1) for tax year 2018. The Company has filed a
Constitutional Petition No. D-1421 of 2020 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh. On Feburary 28, 2020 the
Honorable High Court of Sindh restrained the Deputy Commissioner Insland Revenue from enforcing the impugned
income tax demand. The matter was fixed for March 19, 2020 but got discharged due to COVID-19 and shall be
fixed for hearing subsequent to the year end. However, the management based on the opinion of its tax advisor is
confident that the petition shall be decided in the favor of the Company with stay from recovery of demand till the
disposal of the appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-Il). Therefore, no provision has been
made in these unconsolidated financial statements.

17.2 Commitments

The facilities for opening letter of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 650 million (June 30,
2019: Rs. 840 million) and Rs. 150 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 233 million) respectively. The amount remaining
unutilised at the year end for letter of credit and guarantees was Rs. 634 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 554 million)
and Rs. 50 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 61 million) respectively.

The facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge against hypothecation of the Company's inventories and
receivables.
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18. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Rupees ‘000)

Revenue from

Goods 4,079,678 5,176,674
Services - 256,660
Less:
- Trade discount (84,819) (566,795)
- Sales returns (75,560) (110,609)
- Sales tax (648,655) (680,086)
- Provincial sales tax - (27,227)
(809,034) (1,384,717)
3,270,644 4,048,617
19. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES
Cost of sales - note 19.1 2,435,664 2,802,809
Cost of services - note 19.2 - 217,628
2,435,664 3,020,437
19.1 COST OF SALES
Opening inventory 1,102,071 970,112
Purchases during the year - net of claims 2,042,843 2,934,768
Closing inventory (709,250) (1,102,071)
2,435,664 2,802,809
19.2 COST OF SERVICES
Salaries, wages and allowances - note 19.3 - 64,148
Freight and cartage - 110,982
Vehicle running and repair & maintenance - 1,997
Rent, rates and taxes - 22,117
Insurance and security expenses - 631
Utilities - 1,723
Depreciation - 136
Printing and stationary - 1,123
Communication - 815
Others - 13,956
- 217,628

19.3 Salaries, wages and allowances include Nil (2019: Rs. 1.62 million) in respect of contributory provident fund.
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20. MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES (Rupees ‘000)
Salaries, wages and allowances - note 20.1 47,623 99,170
Freight and cartage 21,790 69,705
Vehicle running and repair & maintenance 36,631 55,931
Rent, rates and taxes 78,094 75,047
Advertising and sales promotion - note 20.2 394,944 400,410
Insurance and security expenses 11,916 12,306
Utilities 8,206 8,731
Travelling and conveyance 1,878 4,016
Depreciation 802 679
Printing and stationary 1,644 2,060
Communication and entertainment 3,284 5,692
Others 14 586

606,826 734,333

20.1 Salaries, wages and allowances include Rs. 0.98 million (2019: Rs. 2 million) in respect of contributory provident
fund.

20.2 This includes Rs. 295.7 million (2019: Rs. 299.3 million) in respect of amortisation of short term prepayments
pertaining to marketing contribution for Red Bull.

21. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES m pe

(Rupees ‘000)

Salaries, wages and allowances - note 21.1 67,781 68,408
Legal and professional 2,527 5,045
Auditors' remuneration - note 21.2 3,193 2,750
Travelling and conveyance 2,902 12,159
Corporate service charges - note 21.3 12,000 12,000
Rent, rates and taxes 2,097 2,732
Vehicle running and repair & maintenance 2,090 2,961
Fee and subscription 204 3,347
Communication and entertainment 606 750
Depreciation 225 238
Amortisation 90 90
Utilities 562 917
Insurance and security expenses 258 263
Demurrages - 5,063
Printing and stationary 162 211
Donations - note 21.4 5,400 5,099
Others 1,506 -
101,603 122,033

21.1 GSalaries, wages and allowances include Rs. 0.72 million (2019: Rs. 0.54 million) in respect of contributory provident
fund.
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21.2 Auditors' remuneration (Rupees ‘000)

Annual audit fee 1,000 1,000
Fee for review of half yearly financial information,
Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate

Governance, other certifications and others 1,193 750
Taxation services 600 600
Out-of-pocket expenses 400 400

3,193 2,750

21.3 This represents reimbursement of information technology charges to International Brands Limited (Holding
Company) at Rs. 1 million (2019: Rs.1 million) per month.

21.4 During the year, the Company made a donation amounting to Rs. 5.4 million (2019: Rs. 3.6 million) to Jamil Dehlavi.

22. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
(Rupees '000)

Provision for expired and damaged stock - note 22.1 137,927 33,673
Loss incurred on discontinuance of business arrangement - 164,068
Balance considered irrecoverable written off 3,406 22,722

141,333 220,463

22.1 This mainly includes provisions for damaged and expired items of J&J amounting to Rs. 62 million and Kellogg’s

amounting to Rs. 46.5 million.

23. OTHER INCOME (Rupees ‘000)
Scrap sales - note 23.1 24,360 1,371
Group relief - note 23.2 14,325 -
Profit on savings accounts 593 678
39,278 2,049

23.1 This represents scrap sales in relation to damaged items of Johnsons & Johnsons business line subsequent to its
discontinuance. This sale represents the portion of total stock which could not be sold to other distributor under
inventory transfer agreement.

23.2 During the year, the Company has availed Group relief under section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance). As allowed under the Ordinance, the Company has surrendered its taxable loss amounting to Rs. 53.35

million to its associated company, The Searle Company Limited.

24. FINANCE COSTS (Rupees ‘000)
Bank charges 8,925 8,162
Mark up on running finance arrangements 4,940 3,498
Mark up on short term loans 123,733 127,331
Exchange (gain) / loss - net (12,507) 185,717
125,091 324,708
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25. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Rupees ‘000)
- for current year 129,942 178,987
- for prior year (1,995) (883)
127,947 178,104
25.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss (Rupees ‘000)
Loss before income tax (143,962)
Tax calculated at the rate of 29% (2019: 29%) (41,749)
Minimum tax on imports 146,945
Minimum tax under section 113 25,083
Prior year impact (1,995)
Others (337)
Income tax expense for the year 127,947

26. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE B Tl 2013

(Rupees ‘000)

Loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (255,676) (549,914)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year 91,800,000 91,800,000
Basic loss per share (2.79) (5.99)

26.1 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in
issue as at June 30, 2020 and 2019 which would have any effect on the loss per share if the option to convert is

exercised.
27. CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS (Rupees ‘000)
Loss before income tax (127,729) (371,810)

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation 1,027 1,053
Amortisation 90 90
Intangible asset written off - 373
Finance cost 137,598 138,991
138,715 140,507
10,986 (231,303)

055 | UNITED BRANDS LIMITED



UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes m 2019
Decrease / (increase) in current assets: (Rupees ‘000)
Inventories 392,821 (131,959)
Trade and other receivables (52,328) 51,933
Prepayments and advances 326,027 218,370
Tax refunds due from government - sales tax (23,471) 24,886
643,049 163,230
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 150,051 (267,695)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 804,086 (335,768)

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances - note 11 41,794 200,915
Running finance under mark-up arrangements - note 16 (30,207) (30,210)
11,587 170,705

29. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE EXECUTIVES
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2020 2019 2020 2019

< (Rupees ‘000) >
Managerial remuneration 960 960 19,917 12,358
Allowances 480 480 9,958 6,179
Bonus 160 160 4,019 2,060
Company's contribution to provident fund - - 652 1,236
Leave encashment 40 40 830 515
Medical expenses 80 80 1,660 1,030
1,720 1,720 37,036 23,378
Number of persons 1 1 6 4

29.1 The Chief Executive and certain Executives are entitled for medical facility to the extent of reimbursement of actual
expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.

29.2 In addition to the above, fee paid to directors for attending Board of Directors meetings during the year amounted
to Rs. 0.25 million (2019: Rs. 0.82 million).
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30.1 The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions m 2019
(Rupees ‘000)

Holding Company - Corporate service charges 12,000 12,000

Associated companies - Purchases 14,311 4,344
- Allocation of expenses - note 30.2 124,945 224 931
- Funds received for working capital - note 14.2 117,000 -
- Group relief - note 23.2 14,325 -
- Sale of goods 41,536 18,257

Post employment staff
benefit plans - Contributions to provident fund 1,701 3,807

Key management

employees
compensation - Salaries and other
employee benefits 38,104 23,862
- Contributions to provident fund 652 1,236
- Directors' fees 250 820

30.2 The Company has an agreement with IBL Operations (Private) Limited - associated company, regarding sharing of
expenses relating to sales and administrative infrastructure.

30.3 The status of outstanding balances with related parties as at June 30, 2020 is included in the respective notes to the
unconsolidated financial statements. These are settled in the ordinary course of business.

30.4 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement /
agreement in place.

S.No. Company Name Basis of association Aggregate % of
Shareholding

1. International Brands Limited Parent 96.08%
2. IBL Logistics (Private) Limited Subsidiary 100.00%
3. IBL Operations (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
4. The Searle Company Limited Group Company N/A
5. IBL Unisys (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
6. Mycart (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
7. International Franchises (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
8. IBL Healthcare Limited Group Company N/A
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31. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees 160 206

Average number of employees during the year 160 377

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

32.1 Allthe financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are classified at amortised cost. The carrying value of
all financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values.

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total
Maturity  Maturity  Sub total Maturity  Maturity Sub total
up to one after one up to one after one
year year year year

(Rupees '000)

v

A

FINANCIAL ASSETS - amortized cost
Investment in subsidiary

- at cost - - - - 25,000 25,000 25,000
Long term deposits - - - - 1,914 1,914 1,914
Trade and other receivables - - - 659,224 - 659,224 659,224
Advances - - - 143,133 - 143,133 143,133
Cash and bank balances 2,254 - 2,254 39,540 - 39,540 41,794
June 30, 2020 2,254 - 2,254 841,897 26,914 868,811 871,065
June 30, 2019 20,216 - 20,216 1,155,426 114 1,155,540 1,175,756

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - amortized cost
At amortised cost

Trade and other payables - - - 816,126 - 816,126 816,126
Unclaimed dividend - - - 353 - 353 353
Long-term borrowings 4,737 9,012 13,749 - - - 13,749
Short term financing 766,452 - 766,452 - - - 766,452
June 30, 2020 771,189 9,012 780,201 816,479 - 816,479 1,596,680
June 30, 2019 1,453,269 - 1,453,269 666,446 - 666,446 2,119,715

ON REPORTING DATE GAP
June 30, 2020 (768,935) (9,012) (777,947) 25,418 26,914 52,332 (725,615)
June 30, 2019 (1,4383,053) - (1,433,053) 488,980 114 489,094 (943,959)

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS
Letters of credit / guarantees
June 30, 2020 783,350

June 30, 2019 615,000
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32.2 Financial Risk Management
(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market
interest rates. As at June 30, 2020, the Company is not materially exposed to interest rate risk.

As at June 30, 2020, the Company had variable interest bearing financial liabilities of Rs. 780.21 million (2019:
Rs. 1,453.26 million) and had the interest rate varied by 200 basis points with all the other variables held
constant, loss before income tax for the year would have been approximately Rs.15.61 million (2019: Rs. 29.06
million) lower / higher.

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of the financial instruments, will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to foreign currency transactions. The Company is exposed to currency risk on payables in respect of
imported inventory denominated in US Dollar ($) and Swiss Francs. The total foreign currency risk exposure as
at June 30, 2020 is Rs. 6.53 million (June 30, 2019: Rs 311.06 million).

As at June 30, 2020, if the Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 4.27% (2019: 29.94%) against US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs.
0.28 million (2019: loss before tax would have been higher / lower by Rs. 93.13 million), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange balances of the Company
only as at the reporting date and assumes this is the position for the year. The volatility percentages for
movement in foreign exchange rates have been used due to the fact that historically (5 years) rates have
moved on average basis by the mentioned percentage per annum.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties
failed to perform as contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
financial assets. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as the
exposure is spread over a number of counter parties. To manage exposure to credit risk, the Company applies
credit limits to its customers.

As at June 30, 2020 there are no past due or impaired balances other than Rs. 54.09 million (June 30, 2019:
Rs 26.95 million) and the carrying amount of trade debts relate to number of independent customers for whom
there is no history of default.

Loans to employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

Bank balances represent low credit risk as these are placed with banks having good credit rating assigned by
credit rating agencies.

Due to the Company's long standing relations with the counterparties, the management does not expect non
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The management closely
monitors the Company's liquidity and cash flow position. The Company's approach to manage liquidity risk is
to maintain sufficient level of liquidity based on expected cash flow by holding highly liquid assets, creditor
concentration and maintaining sufficient reserve financing facilities.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide adequate returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain

an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to
maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise risk.

The debt to capital ratios at June 30, 2020 and at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

(Rupees ‘000)

Total borrowings 780,201 1,453,269
Cash and bank - note 11 (41,794) (200,915)
Net debt 738,407 1,252,354
Equity 51,334 307,010
Total capital 789,741 1,559,364
Debt to capital ratio 0.93 0.80

34. BUSINESS UNITS - GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND ADDRESSES

SALES OFFICES ADDRESSES

Abbottabad Rashid Building, Mir Pur Road Near Mir Pur Chashma. IBL Abbottabad.

Attock Opposite Wapda Office, Dhoke Fateh, Fateh Jung Road. IBL Attock.

Badin Ward No. 06, Channa Mohalla Cantt Road Near Jafferi Hospital. IBL Badin.

Bahawalnagar Street No. 03 Tagwa Colony. IBL Bahawalnagar.

Bahawalpur Plot No. 73-74/A, Small Industrial Area Estate, Multan Road, Near NBP. Bahawalpur.

Bhalwal Factory Area, Street No. 2, Block No. 6. Tahsil. IBL Bhalwal.

Burewala House No. 13C, Fine Executive City Check 437, EB. IBL Burewala.

Chakwal IBL Operations “Lahore Health Centre” Girls College Road. IBL Chakwal.

Chichawatni 96/W, Housing Colony. IBL Chichawatni.

Dadu Ward A House No. 931/18, Pir Buksh Colony, Near Cicuit House. IBL Dadu.

Dera Gazi Khan House No. 64-65,Block No. 16, Al-Mansoor Lodge, Ex PTCL Revenue Office. IBL
Dera Ghazi Khan.

Dera Ismail Khan House No. 2, Kher Abad Colony, Al-Nisa Clinic & Maternity, Diyal Road. IBL D.I. Khan.

Faisalabad Plot No. 387,388, Amin Town, Askari Road Near Educators School, West Canal Road.
IBL Faisalabad.

Ghotki Paryal house, Main G.T. Road, Near Bilal Masjid. IBL Ghotki.

Gilgit Ayub Colony Opposite Nadra Office, Shahra-e-Quaid Azam Jutial. IBL Gilgit.

Gujranwala 8 KM G.T Road , G Mangolia Housing Society. IBL Gujranwala.

Gujrat Near Railway Crossing Shadiwal Road. IBL Gujrat.
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SALES OFFICES ADDRESSES

Hafizabad 169 D, Housing Colony, Jinnah Chowk, Gujranwala Road. IBL Hafizabad.

Hyderabad A/135 Near Al-Khair Agenceis Workshop SITE Area. IBL Hyderabad.

Islamabad Plot No. 65 & 66, Street 13, 1/9-2, Industrial Area. IBL Islamabad.

Jacobabad House No. 635, Shaheed Mohammad Tagyal Road, Dangar Mohalla. IBL
Jacobabad.

Jhang Opposite Chungi No. 14 Faisalabad Road Jhang Sadar. IBL Jhang.

Jhelum House No. BXV-1499 Azeem Road Kala Gujran Tehsil & Distt. IBL Jhelum.

Karachi House No. D-26, Block B, North Nazimabad, Near Life Line Hospital. IBL Karachi.

Karachi A-126, PIA Housing Society. Phase No. 1, Gate No.1. Karachi.

Karachi F2Q SITE, Near Khaadi Factory. Karachi.

Karachi House No. 14, Block 7 & 8, D.M.C.H.S., Tipu Sultan Road. Karachi.

Kasur 2ND-13/R-25 Khara Road O/S Kot Rukan Din Khan. IBL Kasur.

Khanewal House No. 4 Main Road Allama Igbal Town Khanewal.

Kharian Shakir House, Shakir Street, Near Boys Degree Collage, G.T Road. IBL Kharian.

Khushab House No. 190, MOH Laywer Colony, Block No. 12, Jauharabad DISTT. IBL Khushab.

Kohat House No 30-Street No 3 Sector No 10 KDA. IBL Kohat.

Korangi Plot No. 12 & 32, Sector 19, Industrial Area. IBL Korangi.

Kotli Roli Cross Mohalla, Plather Road. IBL Kotli.

Larkana Latif Colony, Main Road Rehmatpur. IBL Larkana.

Layyah House 250/C Housing Scheme 2 Opposite Dr.Qaiser Abbasi Clinic TDA Road Tehsil

Mandi Bahuddin

& Dist. IBL Layyah.
Mohalla Shadman Town, Near Old Rasool Road. IBL Mandi Bahauddin.

Manshera Shafique House, Street No. 1, House No. 1, Mohalla Kohistanabad, Near Butt Pull.
IBL Manshera.

Mardan Ittifag Colony Near Custom Office Koragh Chowk. IBL Mardan.

Mian Wali Kala Bagh Road Near Mianwali Stadium , Mas;jid Street, Muslim Colony. IBL Mianwali.

Mingora Saidu Sharif Road, Near Swat Museum, Mingora Swat. IBL Mingora.

Mirpur AJK House No. 385-A Sector F/3 Hallroad, OPP.M.I.T College. IBL Mirpur (AJK).

Mirpur Khas House No No. 1204 Near Al Shahab Homeo Store Sir Syed Road, Behind UBL
Bank,Torabad. IBL Mir Pur Khas.

Multan Plot N0.590, 591 Jahangir Abad NLC Chowk Main G.T Road. IBL Multan.

Muridke Muhalla Nizam Park, Near Faizan e Madina Masjid. IBL Muridke.

Muzaffar Garh House No. B/VIII-1864, Laal Haveli House, Near General Bus Stand Basti Maharan.
IBL Muzaffar Garh.

Muzaffarabad House No. ZD-541/20, Ward No.24, OPP. Edenz INN Guest House. IBL

Muzaffarabad.

Naroval Mohalla Farooq Ganj Opposite Pakistan Church DPO House Street. IBL Narowal .

Nawabshah H No 138- Ghulam Haider Shah Colony, Near Bukhtawer Park. IBL Nawabshah.

New Challi Shop No.2 FR 6/22 - 111 - C Serai Quarter, Maan Singh Building. KA.RS Captain
Road. IBL New Challi.

Nowshera The Mall Opposite Daewoo Terminal Nowshera Cantt. IBL Nowshera.

Okara House No. 4, Ali Street, Fardious Town G.T. Road. IBL Okara.

Pakpatan Lalazar Colony, St. No. 2, Near Punjab Cadet School. IBL Pakpatan.

Peshawar Jhagra Stop, Near Jhagra Gattering Hall, G.T. Road. IBL Peshawar.

Phool Nagar House No. 1, Street No. 1, Asgha Town. IBL Phool Nagar.

Quetta Plot No. 935 Killi Syedan Airport Road. IBL Quetta.

Rahim Yar Khan House No. 89 A/R Abbasia Banglows Near New ABL Bank National Solidarity
Avenue. IBL Rahim Yar Khan.

Rawla Kot Green Town, Kasai Gali. IBL Rawla Kot.

Sadigabad Sahib Naseeb Town, Street No.1, Manthar Road, IBL Sadigabad.

Sahiwal House No. 7, Street No. 1, Gunj Shakar Colony, IBL Sahiwal.
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SALES OFFICES ADDRESSES

Samundri House No. 335, Housing Colony No. 2. IBL Samundari.

Sargodha Hosue No. 42, Officer Colony, Behind Commerce College, Faisalabad Road. IBL
Sargodha.

Sawabi Plot No 107 Faquir Elahi Chowk Opposite Gul Bahar Street Topi Road. IBL Swabi.

Shahkot Chattha House, Near Sabzi Mandin Nankana Road. IBL Shahkot.

Shaikhupura B - I-11S-18, Street No. 1, Khalid Road, Muslim Gunj. IBL Sheikhupura.

Shikarpur City Survey No. 23/34/5, Station Road, Old Mehran Hotel, Sattari Building, Jahaz
Chowk. IBL Shikarpur.

Sialkot Plot No. 656,657 Barkat Town Near Moltex Factory Off Kasmir Road. IBL Sialkot.

Sukkur Plot No. A - 3, Golimar Area, Near Khabrain Newspaper Press. IBL Sukkur.

Tando Adam Plot No. 17/18, Block 27, Gulshan e Nawaz, Town Hyderabad. IBL Tando Adam.

Timergarrah Opposite D3 Hotel, Bypass Road. IBL Timmergara.

Toba Tek Singh House No. 5, Street No. 2,Mohala Roshan Park, Canal Road. IBL Toba Tek Singh.

Wah Cantt Street No.1, Green Town Ghatiya Road Wah Garden. IBL Wah Cantt.

DISTRIBUTION WAREHOUSES ADDRESSES

Lahore Lahore, 131/3, Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate Gate - 4, Near Fine Chowk, Kot
Lakhpat, Lahore.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorised
for issue on September 29, 2020.

oz -

~
-

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala Sharic( Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of United Brands Limited
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of United Brands Limited (the Holding
Company) and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of finaneial position
as at June g0, 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policics and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated finaneial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2020, and of its eonsolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Palkistan.

Basis for Opinion

We eondueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (134As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Anditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

A, F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accotntants, a member firm of the PuC nebwork
State Life Building No. i-C, LI, Chundrigar Road, £.0. Box 4716, Kavachi-rgo00, Pafdstan
Tel: +g2 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <AL, P, COmm Pk >

s KARACH| = LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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Following is the Key Andit Matter:
S5.No. Key Audit Matter
(i) Impact of COVID - 19

{(Refer note 1)

Due to COVID-19 pandemic and resulting
lockdown in the country since March 2020,
the business activities in the eountry have
been adversely affected. In March 2020, staff
attendance at the Group's head office and
sales offices was reduced, however essential
goods continued to be sold and distributed,
Further, due to this closure, various vear-end
activities relating to financial closing were
impacted. This situation affected the overall
audit strategy. In relation to the accounting
and reporting obligations, management
assessed the following significant areas for
incorporating any potential impact of COVID-
14 in the consolidated financial starements:

o expected credit losses (ECL) under IFRS
9, ‘Financial Instruments”;

= provisions and contingent  labilities
under 1AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assels’,
including onerous contracts’;

¢« the net realisable wvalwe (NRV) of
inventory under 1AS 2, 'Inventories'; and

s going concern assumption used for the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

The COVID-19 pandemic is a significant
development during the year having impact
on audit strategy and its execution and
involved  assessment of management
judgements in the preparation of consolidated
financial  statements.  Therefore, we
considered it to be a key audit matter,

2 of 4 pages
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How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Our  audit procedures,
included the following:

« obtained an overall understanding of the
changes in financial reporting process and
underlying contrals in order to determine
the appropriate audit strategy;

amongst others

« utilised andit software for review and
supervision of andit work;

« obtained management's plan regarding
execution of physical and virtual inventory
cheek;

= observed physical and virtual inventory
check ecarried oul by management
subsequent to year-end and tested the roll-
back of the inventory quantities prepared
by management on a sample basis;

+ for confirmation received through email,
the authenticity of the confirmations was
ensured by  performing  alternate
procedure such as making telephone calls
to confirming parties;

+ pssessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking factors under the COVID-1g9
situation used by management in
preparing ECL model;

¢« evaluated management’s assessment as to
whether any provisions were required to
be recorded as a result of COVID-1y;

« obtained the computation of NRV and
checked its reasonableness;

» cvaluated management's going concern
assessment by reviewing the approved
budget/future cash flow forecast and
management plans and assessed whether
gn‘ting concern assumption is appropriate;
ani

+ reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures
made by the Group under applicable
accounting and reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annunal report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we eonclude that there is a material
r;j}sstate:l:'idem of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal eontrol as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
nperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an anditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are eonsidered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ene resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contrel,

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of aceounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related lo events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Graup’s ahility to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consclidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters, We deseribe these matters in our anditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commu nication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reporl is
Syed Muhammad Hasnain.

-%-:—chq\m‘éﬂﬁ.
AL F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: Oclober 5, 2020
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Long - term deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and advances

Taxation - payments less provisions

Tax refunds due from government - sales tax
Cash and bank balances

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves
Share capital
Accumulated losses

Liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued mark-up

Current portion of long-term borrowings
Short term financing

Total liabilities
Contingency and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

[G2E N

o

10

11

12

13
14

12
15

16

| 2020 [NEGE
(Rupees in ‘000)

15,070 5,487
949 1,317
1,914 114
17,933 6,918
811,593 1,194,899
745,049 610,238
154,353 474,483
33,965 52,455
24,506 3,772
57,890 203,854
1,827,356 2,539,701
1,845,289 2,546,619
918,000 918,000
(871,010) (611,464)
46,990 306,536

9,012 -
1,010,605 748,802
353 371
7,140 37,641

4,737 -
766,452 1,453,269
1,789,287 2,240,083
1,798,299 2,240,083
1,845,289 2,546,619

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

i

a2

Syed Qaisar Abbas
Chief Executive Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

Revenue from contracts with customers 17 3,574,526 4,052,412
Cost of sales and services 18 (2,668,312) (3,022,474)
Gross profit 906,214 1,029,938
Marketing and distribution expenses 19 (645,263) (735,305)
Administrative and general expenses 20 (124,211) (123,892)
Loss allowance on trade receivables 8.1.3 (27,508) (502)
Other operating expenses 21 (145,487) (220,463)
Other income 22 40,317 2,672
Profit / (loss) from operations 4,062 (47,552)
Finance costs 23 (125,523) (324,714)
Loss before income tax (121,461) (372,266)
Income tax expense 24 (138,085) (178,122)
Loss for the year (259,546) (5650,388)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive loss (259,546) (5650,388)
(Rupees)
Basic loss per share 25 (2.83) (6.00)

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala Shariq/ Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Increase in long-term deposits

Income taxes paid

Mark-up paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for acquisition of property and equipment
Payment in advance for capital work in progress
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Proceeds from long term financing

(Repayment of) / proceeds from short term financing
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2019

(Rupees in ‘000’)

26 828,448 (354,330)
(1,800) -

(119,595) (177,426)

(168,361) (107,159)

538,692 (638,915)

(3,008) (4,518)
(8,449) -

(113) (1,166)

(11,570) (5,684)

(18) (220)
13,749 -

(686,814) 617,948

(673,083) 617,728

(145,961) (26,871)

173,644 200,515

27 27,683 173,644

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala

Chief Executive Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Share capital

Issued, Accumulated

subscribed loss Total Equity
and paid up
capital
< (Rupees 000) >
Balance as at July 1, 2018 918,000 (41,459) 876,541
Recognition of expected credit
losses on adoption of IFRS 9 - (19,617) (19,617)
Balance as at July 01, 2018 918,000 (61,076) 856,924
Total comprehensive loss
for the year ended June 30, 2019 - (550,388) (550,388)
Balance as at July 01, 2019 918,000 (611,464) 306,536
Total comprehensive loss - (259,546) (259,546)
for the year ended June 30, 2020
Balance as at June 30, 2020 918,000 (871,010) 46,990

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

¢ w

Syed Qaisar Abbas Zubair Razzak Palwala Shariq/ Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 The Group consists of:
Holding Company - United Brands Limited (the Company)
The Company was incorporated in Pakistan on March 13, 1965 as Batlay Match Industries Limited under the
repealed Company Act, 1913. The Company was renamed as UDL Industries Limited on March 16, 1987 under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company was again renamed as United Brands Limited, a public
limited Company on April 5, 2006 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The shares of the Company are
quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company is a subsidiary of International Brands Limited, which is also the Company's Ultimate Parent.

The principal activities of the Company are trading and distribution of consumer goods and allied products.
Subsequent to year end, the Company has started production of safety razors through toll manufacturing.

These financial statements have been prepared for the year ended June 30, 2014 in relation to the intended listing
of Holding Company of the Company in Pakistan.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company's business units are as under:

Registered office of the Company is situated at 1st Floor, One IBL Center, Block No. 7 & 8, Delhi Mercantile
Muslim Cooperative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi; and

- The Company has various sale offices and distribtuion warehouses, detailed list is provided in note 33.
Subsidiary companies are companies in which the Company owns over 50% of voting rights or companies directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. As at June 30, 2020, the Company owns 100% ordinary shares of IBL
Logistics (Private) Limited (IBLPL).

Subsidiary Company - IBL Logistics (Private) Limited (IBLPL)

IBLPL is a private limited company incorporated and registered under the Companies Act, 2017 on April 23, 2018.

The principal activities of the subsidiary company comprises primarily of warehousing, transportation, supply chain
management, logistics services, trading and distribution of goods.

The geographical locations and addresses of the subsidiary's business units are as under:

- The registered office of the IBLPL is situated at 1st Floor, One IBL Center, Block No. 7 & 8, Delhi Mercantile
Muslim Cooperative Housing Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi;

- IBLPL has warehouses situated on the following address:

- Plot # 39, Sector 19, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi;

- Pepsi North East Warehouse, Dera Gujran Near Quaid-e-Azam Interchange;

- Pepsi Warehouse RB 241 Dhudhanwala Ghaziabad Near Machli Form Stop Lower Canal Road, Jarranwala
Road, Faisalabad; and

- 18th KM, Ferozpur Road, Opposite Pak Arab Society, Near Medix Hospital, Lahore.
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

1.2 Impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human lives but
has also adversely impacted the global economy. On March 20, 2020, the Government of Sindh announced a
temporary lock down as a measure to reduce spread of COVID-19. Complying with the government directive, the
Group temporarily reduced its operations from March 23, 2020, keeping in view safety of its employees, customers
and other stakeholders.

The Group implemented all the necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to continue its business in order
to maintain its business performance despite slowed down economic activity. The lockdown has caused disruptions
in supply chain including supply to the customers resulting in a decline in sales. It is also expected that the outbreak
may result in lower demand in future. Due to this, management has assessed the accounting implications of these
developments on these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to the following areas:

- expected credit losses under IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’;

- the net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, ‘Inventories';

- provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
including onerous contracts'; and

- going concern assumption used for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

According to the management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19
on these consolidated financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

2.1 Basis of preparation
2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.1.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. There are no matters involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

—————————
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UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
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Management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material impact on the amounts
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

There have been no critical judgments made by the Groups's management in applying the accounting policies that
would have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

2.1.3 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that became
effective during the year and are relevant

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. This standard replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17 'Leases'. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short term and low value leases.

The impact of changes laid down by these standards are detailed in note 3.

b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective but not relevant

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2019 are considered not to be relevant for the Group's consolidated financial statements and
hence have not been detailed here.

(c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
relevant but not effective

The new standards, certain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2020 are considered not to be relevant for the Group's consolidated financial
statements and hence have not been detailed here.

2.2 Overall valuation policy

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies below.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

i)  Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than 50% of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Further, the Group also considers whether:

- it has power to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiaries;
- is exposed to variable returns from the subsidiaries; and
- decision making power allows the Group to affects its variable returns from the subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are derecognised
from the date the control ceases. These consolidated financial statements include United Brands Limited (the
Holding Company) and IBL Logistics (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary Company).
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The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis.
Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses (unrealised) are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent
with the policies adopted by the Group.

i)  Where the ownership of a subsidiary is less than hundred percent and therefore, a non controlling interest (NCI)
exists, the NCl is allocated its share of the total comprehensive income of the year, even if that results in a deficit
balance.

The Group treats transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to NCI are also recorded in
equity.

2.4 Property and equipment

These are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (if any) except capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost.

Capital work-in-progress consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and intangible
assets in the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant operating assets category
as and when assets are available for use.

Depreciation is charged to income using the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its
estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements. Depreciation on
acquisition is charged from the month of addition whereas no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The carrying value of operating assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any,
are retired.

Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

2.5 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to
the Group and that the cost of such asset can be measured reliably. These are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment, if any.

Computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of cost incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful life using the straight line method.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying value
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.
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2.6 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the First-In-First out
(FIFO) basis. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
2.7 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing component when they are recognised at fair value. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance. Refer note 2.19 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes
of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with banks,
cash and cheques held at branches and running finance facilities under mark-up arrangements availed from the
banks.

2.9 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at their face value.
2.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services received.

2.11 Lease liability and right-of-use asset

Policy effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019: leases are recognised as right-of-use
assets with corresponding lease liabilities at the date on which leased assets are available for use by the Group
except for leases of short term or low value.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments over the period of lease term and
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using interest rate implicit in the lease or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.
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Lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payment that are based
on an index or a rate which are initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date, amounts
expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option. The extension and termination options are incorporated in
determination of lease term only when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lease
liability is also remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payment.

The lease liability is remeasured when the Group reassesses the reasonable certainty of exercising the extension or
termination option upon occurrence of either a significant event or a significant change in circumstances, or when
there is a change in assessment of an option to purchase underlying asset, or when there is a change in amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or when there is a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payment. The corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When there is a change in scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms
and conditions of the lease, it is accounted for as a lease modification. The lease modification is accounted for as a
separate lease if modification increases the scope of lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets
and the consideration for lease increases by an amount that is commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope adjusted to reflect the circumstances of the particular contracts, if any. When the lease
modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, the lease liability is remeasured and corresponding
adjustment is made to right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of the costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which the asset is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost model. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight
line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

As detailed in note 3, the Group has elected to apply the practical expedient of not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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2.13 Income tax
i. Current

The charge for current taxation is based on the taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account
tax credits and rebates available, if any.

ii. Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising between
tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax
liability is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss account.

Deferred tax is determined at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled based on the tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

2.14 Employee benefits
i.  Defined contribution plan
The Group operates recognised and unrecognised provident funds for its eligible and permanent employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Group and the employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
ii. Leave encashment - compensated absences
The Group accounts for employees' leave encashment at the end of December each year on the basis of 15 days
of unavailed leave balance of each employee. The liability recognised in this respect is based on one half of the
employee's last drawn basic salary.
2.15 Revenue recognition
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when control of the products has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the product. Revenue is

recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised on dispatch of goods to customers i.e when significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the customer.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with credit term of upto 60 days, which is consistent
with the market practice.

Rendering of services

Revenue from transportation and warehousing services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

No element of financing is deemed present as the services are rendered with a credit term of 15 days, which is consistent
with the market practice.
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2.16 Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred and subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use when the borrowing costs are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Such borrowing costs
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Borrowings payable within next twelve months are classified as current liabilities.

2.17 Foreign currency transactions and translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency. The figures are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, if any, as at the reporting date are translated into Rupees
using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses, if any, are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.18 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to shareholders is accounted for in the period in which the dividend is approved.

2.19 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”"),

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or
- at amortised cost.

The Group determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other
than equity instruments) is driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual
cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Classification of financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL"), or
- at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income/(loss).

ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs ae expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realised and unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Group’s own
credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial asset

The Group recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost
at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the following, which are measured at 12 months ECLs:

- bank balances for whom credit risk (the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased since the inception.

- employee receivables.

- other short term receivables that have not demonstrated any increase in credit risk since inception.

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs.
I ————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
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The Group considers a financial asset in default when it is more than 90 days past due.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible defaults events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12 month ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovering
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Derecognition
i) Financial assets

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to
another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition,
on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of
an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to consolidated statement of changes in equity.

ii) Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2.20 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the Group has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i) IFRS 16 - Leases

Effective July 01, 2019, the Group has adopted IFRS 16, "Leases" which replaces existing guidance on
accounting for leases, including IAS 17 'Leases’, IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an arrangement contains a
Lease', SIC-15 'Operating Leases- Incentive and SIC-27 'Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the
legal form of a Lease'. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A
lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right-of-use of the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard
i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The accounting polices relating to the
Group's right-of-use asset and lease liability are disclosed in note 2.11 of the consolidated financial statements.
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In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

- By accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at July 01, 2019 as
short-term leases; and

- By electing not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date, the Group relied on its arrangement made applying IAS 17
and interpretation for determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease.

The Group has evaluated the impact of the new standard and has concluded that there is no impact that needs to be
given effect in these consolidated financial statements. However at the time of interim reporting on December 31, 2019
the management decided not to use the practical expedients stated above and in note 2.11.

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Rupees “000)

Operating assets - note 4.1 6,621 5,487
Capital work in progress - note 4.3 8,449 -
15,070 5,487

4.1 Operating assets

Leasehold Furniture Office and Motor

Improvements g s Vehicles Lzl
P Fittings Equipments
. <¢ (Rupees ‘000) >
Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening net book value (NBV) - 1,024 4,463 - 5,487
Additions (at cost) 660 281 2,067 - 3,008
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 (28) (154) (1,692) - (1,874)
Closing net book value (NBV) 632 1,151 4,838 - 6,621
Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2020
Cost 2,358 2,485 17,334 2,842 25,019
Accumulated depreciation (1,726) (1,334) (12,496) (2,842) (18,398)
Net book value (NBV) 632 1,151 4,838 - 6,621
Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2019
Opening net book amount - 902 3,489 - 4,391
Additions (at cost) - 887 3,631 - 4,518
Disposals (at NBV) - (659) (1,378) - (2,037)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 - (106) (1,279) - (1,385)
Closing net book value (NBV) - 1,024 4,463 - 5,487

e —
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Leasehold Furniture Office and Motor

Improvements g s Vehicles e
P Fittings Equipments
<« (Rupees ‘000) >

Gross carrying value basis
At June 30, 2019
Cost 1,698 2,204 15,267 2,842 22,011
Accumulated depreciation (1,698) (1,180) (10,804) (2,842) (16,524)
Net book value (NBV) - 1,024 4,463 - 5,487
Useful life in years 10 10 5 5

4.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:

(Rupees ‘000)

Cost of services note-18.2 555 136
Marketing and distribution expenses note-19 1,030 685
Administrative and general expenses note-20 289 564

1,874 1,385

4.3 Capital Work In Progress

Balance Balance

Balance Additions Additions Balance
: as at asat )
asatJuly during Transfers June July 01 during  Transfers asatJune
01,2019 theyear 30,2020 2018 the year 30,2019
< (Rupees ‘000) >
Machinery - items note 4.4 - 8,449 - 8,449

4.4 Machinery items represent moulds and cylinders having cost of Rs 7.70 million (2019: Nil) and 0.75 million (2019:
Nil) which are located at premises of Afeef Packages (Private) Limited and Fazleesons (Private) Limited respectively,
as these are being used for manufacturing of the Group's products as disclosed in note 1.

(Rupees ‘000)
Computer software - note 5.1 949 1,317

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

5.1 Computer software

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value 1,317 699
Addition during the year 113 1,408
Disposals (at NBV) - (85)
Asset written off - (373)
Amortisation charge (481) (332)
Net book value 949 1,317
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6.1

71

7.2

8.1

(Rupees ‘000)
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 1,802 1,689
Accumulated Amortisation (853) (372)
Net book value 949 1,317
Useful life in years 3to5 3tob

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Long term deposits - note 6.1 1,914 114

As at June 30, 2020, this includes rent deposit amounting to Rs. 0.114 million (2019: Rs. 0.114 million) and against
security deposit to Pakistan State Oil Limited for fuel card facility of Rs. 1.8 million (2019: Nil) . These facilities are
given to the employees in accordance with the terms of employment. These deposits do not carry any mark up

arrangement.

INVENTORIES (Rupees ‘000)

Finished goods:

in hand - notes 7.1 & 7.2 653,166 649,812

in transit - note 7.2 158,427 545,087
811,593 1,194,899

These include stock-in-trade amounting to Nil (2019: Rs. 30.63 million) held with third party.

As at June 30, 2020, this includes inventory of Johnson & Johnson Middle East FZ-LLC amounting to Rs. 38.77
million (2019: Rs. 119.29 million) in hand and Rs. 111.65 million in transit (2019: Rs. 331.38 million) out of which
inventory having carrying value of Rs. 87.44 million will be recovered through the inventory transfer agreement.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - unsecured | 2020 | 2019
(Rupees ‘000)
Trade receivables - note 8.1 530,575 254,882
Other receivables - note 8.2 214,474 355,356
745,049 610,238

Trade receivables - unsecured

Considered good

Related party - note 8.1.1 5,135 8,755
Others - note 8.1.2 525,440 246,127
Considered doubtful 54,473 26,965
585,048 281,847
Less: Loss allowance on doubtful receivables - note 8.1.3 (54,473) (26,965)
530,575 254,882
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8.1.1 As at June 30, 2020, age analysis of trade receivables from related parties is as follows:

Name of related party Gross Past due Provision Reversal of Amount Net Maximum
amount due amount for provision due written amount due amount
doubtful for off outstanding
receivables doubtful at any time
receivables during the
year
<t (Rupees '000) >
The Searle Company Limited 4,781 3,203 - - - 4,781 8,571
International Brands Limited 57 57 - - - 57 57
IBL Operations (Private)
Limited 175 175 - - - 175 175
OBS Pakistan (Private)
Limited 80 80 - - - 80 80
International Franchises
(Private) Limited 3 3 - - - 3 470
IBL Frontier Markets
(Private) Limited 39 39 - - - 39 39
5,135 3,557 - - - 5,135 9,392

8.1.2 As at June 30, 2020, the age analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

(Rupees ‘000)

Not yet due 387,589 139,647
Past due
- Lessthan 30 days 78,245 61,035
- 311090 days 52,324 31,033
- 90 to 360 days 18,806 24,189
- More than 360 days 42,949 17,063
192,324 133,320
579,913 272,967
8.1.3 Balance at beginning of the year 26,965 6,846
Recognition of expected credit losses - note 3 - 19,617
Charge during the year - net 27,508 502
Balance at end of the year 54,473 26,965

8.2 Other receivables - unsecured
Considered good

Related party - note 8.2.2 1,468 8,172
Others - note 8.2.1 213,006 347,184
214,474 355,356

8.2.1 This represents receivable from principals in respect of stock claims, expenses and others.

8.2.2 As at June 30, 2020, age analysis of other receivables from related party is as follows:
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Name of related party Gross Past due Provision Reversal of Amount Net Maximum
amount due amount for provision due written  amount due amount
doubtful for off outstanding
receivables doubtful at any time
receivables during the
year

'

(Rupees '000)

v

United Retail (SMC-Private) Limited 1,468 - - - - 1,468 1,748

1,468 - - - - 1,468 1,748

8.2.2.1This represents amount receivable from United Retail (SMC-Private) Limited - associated company. The amount
represents claims in respect of warehousing and transportation expenses paid on behalf of the associated

company.
9.  PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES - unsecured E B CUIL
(Rupees ‘000)
Prepayments - note 9.1 2,058 101,652
Advances - note 9.2 152,295 372,831
154,353 474,483
9.1 PREPAYMENTS
Rent
Deposit 1,608 1,011
Prepaid 400 108
Insurance - 193
Others 50 100,340
2,058 101,652
9.2. Advances - considered good
- Advance against letter of credit - note 9.2.1 102,875 333,328
- Advance against toll manufacturing 9.2.2 4,028 -
- Advance to employees 1,499 956
- Advance against raw material 1,815 -
- Advance to suppliers 6,111 -
- Advance against marketing 353 -
- Others9.2.3 35,614 38,547
152,295 372,831

9.2.1 This represents advances paid as 100% margin as per the BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2017 issued by the SBP under
the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 for the import of goods.

9.2.2 This represents advance to Afeef Packages (Private) Limited against toll manufacturing of products.
9.2.3 The amount represents advances given to clearing agents, shipping companies and regulatory authorities.

9.2.4 These advances do not carry any mark up arrangement.
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10. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Rupees ‘000)
Cash at banks
Current accounts - note 10.1 32,637 141,556
Savings accounts - note 10.2 12,840 23,035
45,477 164,591
Cash and cheques in hand 12,413 39,263
57,890 203,854

10.1 All current accounts are maintained under conventional banking system.

10.2 Savings accounts are maintained under Islamic banking system carrying profit sharing rate ranging from 0.05% to
3.54% (2019: 0.05% to 6.26%)

11. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital

Number of Shares m 2019

100,000,000 100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paidup Share Capital

91,800,000 10,800,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash 918,000 108,000

11.1  As at June 30, 2020 International Brands Limited together with its nominees held 88,200,462 (June 30, 2018:

88,200,462) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

12.  LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Rupees '000)
Salary refinancing 13,749 -
less: current portion of salary refinancing (4,737) -

9,012 -

12.1 The Group has obtained payroll refinancing amounting to Rs.13.75 million in June 2020 for the payment of wages
and salaries for the months of April and May 2020. The loan is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments starting from
January 2021. It carries mark-up equal to SBP Refinance rate plus 3%.
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(Rupees ‘000)
13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 439,400 153,714
Payable to International Brands Limited - note 13.1 5,154 8,032
Payable to IBL Operations (Private) Limited - note 13.2 279,802 9,793
Payable to The Searle Company Limited - note 13.3 117,071 141,266
Payable to IBL Unisys (Private) Limited - 1,102
Payable to IBL Healthcare Limited - note 13.3 579 -
Accrued liabilities 136,870 88,858
Advances from customers 11,259 -
Bills payables 6,530 311,065
Payable to employees' provident fund - note 13.4 4,759 2,381
Withholding tax payable 136 1,343
EOBI and SESSI payable - 376
Other liabillities 9,045 30,872
1,010,605 748,802

13.1 This represents amount payable on account of corporate service charges.
13.2 This includes amount payable to IBL Operations (Private) Limited - associated company under agreement for
sharing of expenses relating to sales and administrative infrastructure. It also includes Rs. 117 million as funds

transferred to the Group to meet working capital requirements which do not carry mark-up and are repayable on
demand.

13.3 This represents amount payable in respect of goods purchased from a related party.

13.4 Allinvestments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out of provident fund have
been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions
specified thereunder.

14. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Accrued mark-up comprises of mark-up on short term borrowings and on running finance.

15. SHORT TERM FINANCING (Rupees ‘000)
Running finance under mark-up arrangement - notes 15.1 30,207 30,210
Short term loans - notes 15.2 & 15.3 736,245 1,423,059
766,452 1,453,269

15.1 As at June 30, 2020, available running finance facility under mark-up arrangement from a commercial bank
amounted to Rs. 35 million (2019: Rs. 35 million). The arrangement is secured by way of pari passu charge over the
inventories and receivables of the Group with 25% margin.
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The arrangement carries mark-up at the rate of 2.25% above one month KIBOR (2019: 2.25% above one month
KIBOR) to be determined on monthly basis.

15.2 These represent short term loans obtained under financing arrangement from commercial banks. These are secured
by way of hypothecation charge over inventories and receivables of the Group with 25% margin. These are maturing
between July and December 2020.

The arrangements carry mark-up ranging from 0.15% and 2.5% above six months KIBOR to 1.75% above three
month KIBOR (2019: average six month KIBOR to 2.5% over three month KIBOR).

15.3 Following are the changes in the short term loans (i.e. for which cash flows have been classified as financing

activities in the consolidated statement of cashflows):
(Rupees ‘000)

Balance as at July 1 1,423,059 805,111

Disbursements during the year 2,406,115 3,738,473
Repayment during the year (3,092,929) (3,120,525)
Balance as at June 30 736,245 1,423,059

16. CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS
16.1 Contingency

During the year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued a demand under section 137(2) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) dated January 31, 2020 for recovery of tax amounting to Rs. 94.66 million created
pursuant to order dated January 31, 2020 passed under section 122(1) for tax year 2018. The Group has filed a
Constitutional Petition No. D-1421 of 2020 before the Honorable High Court of Sindh. On Feburary 28, 2020 the
Honorable High Court of Sindh restrained the Deputy Commissioner Insland Revenue from enforcing the impugned
income tax demand. The matter was fixed for March 19, 2020 but got discharged due to COVID-19 and shall be
fixed for hearing subsequent to the year end. However, the management based on the opinion of its tax advisor is
confident that the petition shall be decided in the favor of the Group with stay from recovery of demand till the
disposal of the appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals-Il). Therefore, no provision has been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

16.2 Commitments

The facilities for opening letter of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2020 amounted to Rs. 750 million (June 30,
2019: Rs. 840 million) and Rs. 150 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 233 million) respectively. The amount remaining
unutilised at the year end for letter of credit and guarantees was Rs. 733 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 554 million)
and Rs. 50 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 61 million) respectively.

The facilities are secured by way of pari passu charge against hypothecation of the Group's inventories and
receivables.

e —
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17. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS m 2019
Revenue from (Rupees ‘000)
Goods 4,254,446 5,180,469
Services - note 17.1 232,545 256,660
Less:
- Trade discount (138,416) (566,795)
- Sales returns (96,346) (110,609)
- Sales tax (648,764) (680,086)
- Provincial sales tax (28,939) (27,227)
(912,465) (1,384,717)

_ 3,574,526 _  4.052412
17.1 This represents warehousing and transportation services to a bottling plant.

18. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Cost of sales - note 18.1 2,489,941 2,804,846
Cost of services - note 18.2 178,371 217,628
2,668,312 3,022,474

18.1 Cost of sales

Opening inventory 1,194,899 970,112
Purchases during the year - net of claims 2,106,635 3,029,633
Closing inventory (811,593) (1,194,899)

2,489,941 2,804,846

18.2 Cost of services

Salaries, wages and allowances - note 18.3 70,373 64,148
Freight and cartage 266 110,982
Vehicle running and repair & maintenance 73,205 1,997
Rent, rates and taxes 29,738 22117
Insurance and security expenses 367 631
Utilities 335 1,723
Depreciation 555 136
Amortisation 36 -
Printing and stationary 380 1,123
Communication & entertainment 557 815
Others 2,559 13,956
178,371 217,628

18.3 Salaries, wages and allowances include Rs. 1.2 million (2019: Rs. 1.62 million) in respect of contributory provident
fund.
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19. MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and allowances - note 19.1
Warranty and claims - note 19.2

Freight and cartage

Vehicle running and repair & maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes

Advertising and sales promotion - note 19.3
Insurance and security expenses

Utilities

Travelling and conveyance

Depreciation

Amortisation

Printing and stationary

Communication and entertainment

Fees and subscription

Others

(Rupees ‘000)

73,871 100,115
2,764 -
23,153 69,705
38,357 55,931
78,522 75,047
395,138 400,410
12,202 12,306
10,585 8,731
1,878 4,016
1,030 685
333 21
2,621 2,060
4,592 5,692
12 -
205 586
645,263 735,305

19.1 Salaries, wages and allowances include Rs. 1.43 million (2019: Rs. 2.02 million) in respect of contributory provident

fund.

19.2 This represents provision against replacement of damaged products of Future Technologies subject to warranty

period aligned with customers.

19.3 This includes Rs. 295.7 million (2019: Rs. 299.3 million) in respect of amortisation of short term prepayments

pertaining to marketing contribution for Red Bull.

20. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and allowances - note 20.1
Legal and professional - note 20.2
Auditors' remuneration - note 20.3

Freight and cartage

Travelling and conveyance

Corporate service charges - note 20.4
Rent, rates and taxes

Vehicle running and repair & maintenance
Fee and subscription

Communication and entertainment
Depreciation

Amortisation

Utilities

Insurance and security expenses
Demurrages

Printing and stationary

Donations - note 20.5

Others

(Rupees ‘000)

2019

84,936 69,501
5,719 5,095
3,313 2,870

652 -
2,902 12,159

12,000 12,000
2,097 2,732
2,369 3,004

544 3,347
819 752
289 564
112 311
562 917
365 267
- 5,063
626 211
5,400 5,099
1,506 -
124,211 123,892

20.1 Salaries, wages and allowances include Rs. 1.01 million (2019: Rs. 0.61 million) in respect of contributory provident

fund.
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20.2 This includes Rs. 1.48 million paid for consultancy in relation to Schick business line.

20.3 Auditors' remuneration m 0

(Rupees ‘000)

Annual audit fee 1,100 1,100
Fee for review of half yearly financial information,
Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate

Governance and other certifications 1,193 750
Taxation services 600 600
Out-of-pocket expenses 420 420

3,313 2,870

20.4 This represents reimbursement of information technology charges to International Brands Limited (Holding
Company) at Rs. 1 million (2019: Rs.1 million) per month.

20.5 During the year, the Group made a donation amounting to Rs. 5.4 million (2019: Rs. 3.6 million) to Jamil Dehlavi.

21. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES m 2019
(Rupees ‘000)

Provision for expired and damaged stock - note 21.1 140,518 33,673
Loss incurred on discontinuance of business arrangement - 164,068
Balance considered irrecoverable written off 3,406 22,722
Others - note 21.2 1,563 -
145,487 220,463

21.1 This mainly includes provisions for damaged and expired items of J&J amounting to Rs. 62 million and Kellogg’s
amounting to Rs. 46.5 million.

21.2 This pertains to deductions by the principals on account of incomplete execution of sales order.

22.  OTHER INCOME (Rupees ‘000)
Scrap sales - note 22.1 24,360 1,371
Profit on savings accounts 1,632 1,301
Group relief - note 22.2 14,325 -
40,317 2,672

22.1 This represents scrap sales in relation to damaged items of Johnsons & Johnsons business line subsequent to its
discontinuance. This sale represents the portion of total stock which could not be sold to other distributor under
inventory transfer agreement.

22.2 During the year, the Group has availed Group relief under section 59B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance). As allowed under the Ordinance, the Group has surrendered its taxable loss amounting to Rs. 53.35
million to its associated company, The Searle Company Limited.

092 | UNITED BRANDS LIMITED



UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

23. FINANCE COSTS (Rupees "000)
Bank charges 9,187 8,168
Mark up on running finance arrangements 4,940 3,498
Mark up on short term loans 123,733 127,331
Exchange (gain)/loss - net (12,337) 185,717
125,523 324,714

24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

- for current year 140,008 179,005
- for prior year (1,923) (883)
138,085 178,122

241 This represents current tax expense for the year. As the major portion of the Group's income is covered under
Minimum Tax Regime, accordingly, tax reconciliation between accounting loss and tax expense is not presented.

25. Basic loss per share

(Rupees ‘000)
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary

shareholders (259,546) (550,388)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number of shares
outstanding during the year
91,800,000 91,800,000
(Rupees)
Basic loss per share (2.83) (6.00)

25.1 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Group does not have any convertible instruments in
issue as at June 30, 2020 and 2019 which would have any effect on the loss per share if the option to convert is
exercised.

26. CASH GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN) OPERATIONS
Loss before income tax (121,461) (372,266)

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation 1,874 1,385
Amortisation 481 332
Intangible asset written off - 373
Finance cost 137,860 138,997
140,215 141,087

18,754 (231,179)
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Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes

Decrease / (increase) in current assets: (Rupees "000)
Inventories 383,306 (224,787)
Trade and other receivables (134,811) 48,591
Prepayments and advances 320,130 213,370
Tax refunds due from government - sales tax (20,734) 24,885
547,891 62,059
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 261,803 (185,210)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 828,448 (354,330)

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances - note 10 57,890 203,854
Running finance under mark-up arrangements - note 15 (30,207) (30,210)
27,683 173,644

28. REMUNERATION TO CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

CHIEF EXECUTIVE EXECUTIVES
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2020 2019 2020 2019
< (Rupees ‘000) >
Managerial remuneration 960 960 24,313 12,358
Allowances 480 480 12,838 6,179
Bonus 160 160 4,752 2,060
Group's contribution to provident fund - - 1,092 1,236
Leave encashment 40 40 1.013 515
Medical expenses 80 80 2,026 1030
1,720 1,720 46,034 23,378
Number of persons 1 1 9 3

28.1 The Chief Executive and certain Executives are entitled for medical facility to the extent of reimbursement of actual
expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.

28.2 In addition to the above, fee paid to directors for attending Board of Directors meetings during the year amounted
to Rs. 0.25 million (2019: Rs. 0.82 million).
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

29.1 The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions m 2019
(Rupees ‘000)

Ultimate Parent - Corporate service charges 12,000 12,000

Associated companies - Purchases 71,764 101,183
- Allocation of expenses - note 29.2 124,945 224,931
- Funds received for working capital - note 13.2 117,000 -
- Group relief - note 22.2 14,325 -
- Sale of goods 52,865 18,905

Post employment staff
benefit plans - Contributions to provident fund 1,701 3,807

Key management

employees
compensation - Salaries and other
employee benefits 46,662 24,290
- Contributions to provident fund 1,092 1,265
- Directors' fees 250 820

29.2 The Group has an agreement with IBL Operations (Private) Limited - associated company, regarding sharing of
expenses relating to sales and administrative infrastructure.

29.3 The status of outstanding balances with related parties as at June 30, 2020 is included in the respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements. These are settled in the ordinary course of business.

29.4 Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have arrangement /
agreement in place.

S.No. Company Name Basis of association Aggregate % of
Shareholding

1. International Brands Limited Ultimate Parent 96.08%
2. IBL Operations (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
3. The Searle Company Limited Group Company N/A
4. IBL Unisys (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
5. Mycart (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
6. IBL Frontier Markets (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
7. International Franchises (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
8. OBS Paakistan (Private) Limited Group Company N/A
9. United Retail (SMC-Private) Limited Group Company N/A
10. IBL Healthcare Limited Group Company N/A
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30. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees 313 227

Average number of employees during the year 322 398

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

31.1 All the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are classified at amortised cost. The carrying value of all
financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values.

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing Total
Maturity Maturity after Total Maturity Maturity after Total
up to one year one year up to one one year
year

A

(Rupees '000)

v

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortized cost

Long term deposits - - - - 1,914 1,914 1,914
Trade and other receivables - - - 745,049 - 745,049 745,049
Advances - - - 152,295 - 152,295 152,295
Cash and bank balances 12,840 - 12,840 45,050 - 45,050 57,890
June 30, 2020 12,840 - 12,840 942,394 1,914 944,308 957,148
June 30, 2019 23,035 - 23,035 1,163,888 114 1,164,002 1,187,037

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortized cost

Trade and other payables - - - 1,005,710 - 1,005,710 1,005,710
Unclaimed dividend - - - 353 - 353 353
Long-term borrowings 4,737 9,012 13,749 - - - 13,749

Lease liabilities - - _

Short term financing 766,452 - 766,452 - - - 766,452
Accrued mark-up 7,140 - 7,140 - - - 7,140
Unclaimed dividend - - - 353 - 353 353
June 30, 2020 778,329 9,012 787,341 1,006,416 - 1,006,416 1,793,757
June 30, 2019 1,453,269 - 1,453,269 749,173 - 749,173 2,202,442

ON REPORTING DATE GAP
June 30, 2020 (765,489) (9,012) (774,501) (64,022) 1,914 (62,108)  (836,609)
June 30, 2019 (1,430,234) - (1,430,234) 414,715 114 414,829 (1,015,405)

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Letters of credit / guarantees
June 30, 2020 783,350

June 30, 2019 615,000
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31.2 Financial risk management
(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in the market interest rates. As at June 30, 2020, the Group is not materially exposed to interest rate risk.

As at June 30, 2020, the Group had variable interest bearing financial liabilities of Rs. 766.45 million (2019:Rs.
1,453.26 million) and had the interest rate varied by 200 basis points with all the other variables held constant,
loss before income tax for the year would have been approximately Rs.15.32 million (2019: 29.06 million) lower
/ higher.

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of the financial instruments, will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to foreign currency transactions. The Group is exposed to currency risk on payables in respect of imported
inventory denominated in US Dollar ($) and Swiss Francs . The total foreign currency risk exposure as at June
30, 2020 is Rs. 6.53 million (June 30, 2019: Rs 311.06 million).

As at June 30, 2020, if the Pak Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 4.27% (2019: 29.94%) against US
Dollar with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs.
0.28 million (2019: loss before tax would have been higher / lower by Rs. 93.13 million), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of US Dollar denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The sensitivity of foreign exchange rate looks at the outstanding foreign exchange balances of the Group only
as at the reporting date and assumes this is the position for the year. The volatility percentages for movement
in foreign exchange rates have been used due to the fact that historically (5 years) rates have moved on
average basis by the mentioned percentage per annum.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties
failed to perform as contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
financial assets. The Group believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as the exposure
is spread over a number of counter parties. To manage exposure to credit risk, the Group applies credit limits
to its customers.

As at June 30, 2020 there are no past due or impaired balances other than Rs. 54.47 million (June 30, 2019:
Rs 26.95 million) and the carrying amount of trade debts relate to number of independent customers for whom
there is no history of default.

Loans to employees are secured against their retirement benefits.

Bank balances represent low credit risk as these are placed with banks having good credit rating assigned by
credit rating agencies.

Due to the Group's long standing relations with the counterparties, the management does not expect non
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group.
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(c¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Group's inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The management closely
monitors the Group's liquidity and cash flow position. The Group's approach to manage liquidity risk is to
maintain sufficient level of liquidity based on expected cash flow by holding highly liquid assets, creditor
concentration and maintaining sufficient reserve financing facilities.

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can provide adequate returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The dept to capital ratio at june 30, 2020 and at june 30, 2019 were as follows.

(Rupees ‘000)

Total borrowings 780,201 1,453,269
Cash and bank - note 10 (57,890) (203,854)
Net debt 722,311 1,249,415
Equity 46,990 306,536
Total capital 769,301 1,555,951
Debt to capital ratio 0.94 0.80

33. BUSINESS UNITS - GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND ADDRESSES

SALES OFFICES ADDRESSES

Abbottabad Rashid Building, Mir Pur Road Near Mir Pur Chashma. IBL Abbottabad.

Attock Opposite Wapda Office, Dhoke Fateh, Fateh Jung Road. IBL Attock.

Badin Ward No. 06, Channa Mohalla Cantt Road Near Jafferi Hospital. IBL Badin.

Bahawalnagar Street No. 03 Tagwa Colony. IBL Bahawalnagar.

Bahawalpur Plot No. 73-74/A, Small Industrial Area Estate, Multan Road, Near NBP. Bahawalpur.

Bhalwal Factory Area, Street No. 2, Block No. 6. Tahsil. IBL Bhalwal.

Burewala House No. 13C, Fine Executive City Check 437, EB. IBL Burewala.

Chakwal IBL Operations “Lahore Health Centre” Girls College Road. IBL Chakwal.

Chichawatni 96/W, Housing Colony. IBL Chichawatni.

Dadu Ward A House No. 931/18, Pir Buksh Colony, Near Cicuit House. IBL Dadu.

Dera Gazi Khan House No. 64-65,Block No. 16, Al-Mansoor Lodge, Ex PTCL Revenue Office. IBL
Dera Ghazi Khan.

Dera Ismail Khan House No. 2, Kher Abad Colony, Al-Nisa Clinic & Maternity, Diyal Road. IBL D.I. Khan.

Faisalabad Plot No. 387,388, Amin Town, Askari Road Near Educators School, West Canal Road.
IBL Faisalabad.

Ghotki Paryal house, Main G.T. Road, Near Bilal Masjid. IBL Ghotki.

Gilgit Ayub Colony Opposite Nadra Office, Shahra-e-Quaid Azam Jutial. IBL Gilgit.

Gujranwala 8 KM G.T Road , G Mangolia Housing Society. IBL Gujranwala.

Guijrat Near Railway Crossing Shadiwal Road. IBL Gujrat.

Hafizabad 169 D, Housing Colony, Jinnah Chowk, Gujranwala Road. IBL Hafizabad.
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SALES OFFICES ADDRESSES

Hyderabad A/135 Near Al-Khair Agenceis Workshop SITE Area. IBL Hyderabad.

Islamabad Plot No. 65 & 66, Street 13, 1/9-2, Industrial Area. IBL Islamabad.

Jacobabad House No. 635, Shaheed Mohammad Tagyal Road, Dangar Mohalla. IBL
Jacobabad.

Jhang Opposite Chungi No. 14 Faisalabad Road Jhang Sadar. IBL Jhang.

Jhelum House No. BXV-1499 Azeem Road Kala Gujran Tehsil & Distt. IBL Jhelum.

Karachi House No. D-26, Block B, North Nazimabad, Near Life Line Hospital. IBL Karachi.

Karachi A-126, PIA Housing Society. Phase No. 1, Gate No.1. Karachi.

Karachi F2Q SITE, Near Khaadi Factory. Karachi.

Karachi House No. 14, Block 7 & 8, D.M.C.H.S., Tipu Sultan Road. Karachi.

Kasur 2ND-13/R-25 Khara Road O/S Kot Rukan Din Khan. IBL Kasur.

Khanewal House No. 4 Main Road Allama Igbal Town Khanewal.

Kharian Shakir House, Shakir Street, Near Boys Degree Collage, G.T Road. IBL Kharian.

Khushab House No. 190, MOH Laywer Colony, Block No. 12, Jauharabad DISTT. IBL Khushab.

Kohat House No 30-Street No 3 Sector No 10 KDA. IBL Kohat.

Korangi Plot No. 12 & 32, Sector 19, Industrial Area. IBL Korangi.

Kotli Roli Cross Mohalla, Plather Road. IBL Kotli.

Larkana Latif Colony, Main Road Rehmatpur. IBL Larkana.

Layyah House 250/C Housing Scheme 2 Opposite Dr.Qaiser Abbasi Clinic TDA Road Tehsil

Mandi Bahuddin

& Dist. IBL Layyah.
Mohalla Shadman Town, Near Old Rasool Road. IBL Mandi Bahauddin.

Manshera Shafique House, Street No. 1, House No. 1, Mohalla Kohistanabad, Near Butt Pull.
IBL Manshera.

Mardan [ttifag Colony Near Custom Office Koragh Chowk. IBL Mardan.

Mian Wali Kala Bagh Road Near Mianwali Stadium , Masjid Street, Muslim Colony. IBL Mianwali.

Mingora Saidu Sharif Road, Near Swat Museum, Mingora Swat. IBL Mingora.

Mirpur AJK House No. 385-A Sector F/3 Hallroad, OPP.M.I.T College. IBL Mirpur (AJK).

Mirpur Khas House No No. 1204 Near Al Shahab Homeo Store Sir Syed Road, Behind UBL
Bank,Torabad. IBL Mir Pur Khas.

Multan Plot No.590, 591 Jahangir Abad NLC Chowk Main G.T Road. IBL Multan.

Muridke Muhalla Nizam Park, Near Faizan e Madina Masjid. IBL Muridke.

Muzaffar Garh House No. B/VIII-1864, Laal Haveli House, Near General Bus Stand Basti Maharan.
IBL Muzaffar Garh.

Muzaffarabad House No. ZD-541/20, Ward No.24, OPP. Edenz INN Guest House. IBL Muzaffarabad.

Naroval Mohalla Faroog Ganj Opposite Pakistan Church DPO House Street. IBL Narowal .

Nawabshah H No 138- Ghulam Haider Shah Colony, Near Bukhtawer Park. IBL Nawabshah.

New Challi Shop No.2 FR 6/22 - 111 - C Serai Quarter, Maan Singh Building. KA.RS Captain
Road. IBL New Challi.

Nowshera The Mall Opposite Daewoo Terminal Nowshera Cantt. IBL Nowshera.

Okara House No. 4, Ali Street, Fardious Town G.T. Road. IBL Okara.

Pakpatan Lalazar Colony, St. No. 2, Near Punjab Cadet School. IBL Pakpatan.

Peshawar Jhagra Stop, Near Jhagra Gattering Hall, G.T. Road. IBL Peshawar.

Phool Nagar House No. 1, Street No. 1, Asgha Town. IBL Phool Nagar.

Quetta Plot No. 935 Killi Syedan Airport Road. IBL Quetta.

Rahim Yar Khan House No. 89 A/R Abbasia Banglows Near New ABL Bank National Solidarity
Avenue. IBL Rahim Yar Khan.

Rawla Kot Green Town, Kasai Gali. IBL Rawla Kot.

Sadigabad Sahib Naseeb Town, Street No.1, Manthar Road, IBL Sadigabad.

Sahiwal House No. 7, Street No. 1, Gunj Shakar Colony, IBL Sahiwal.

Samundri House No. 335, Housing Colony No. 2. IBL Samundari.

Sargodha Hosue No. 42, Officer Colony, Behind Commerce College, Faisalabad Road. IBL

Sargodha.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 | 099



UNITED BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Sawabi
Shahkot
Shaikhupura
Shikarpur

Sialkot

Sukkur

Tando Adam
Timergarrah
Toba Tek Singh
Wah Cantt

Plot No 107 Faquir Elahi Chowk Opposite Gul Bahar Street Topi Road. IBL Swabi.
Chattha House, Near Sabzi Mandin Nankana Road. IBL Shahkot.

B - 1I-11S-18, Street No. 1, Khalid Road, Muslim Gunj. IBL Sheikhupura.

City Survey No. 23/34/5, Station Road, Old Mehran Hotel, Sattari Building, Jahaz
Chowk. IBL Shikarpur.

Plot No. 656,657 Barkat Town Near Moltex Factory Off Kasmir Road. IBL Sialkot.
Plot No. A - 3, Golimar Area, Near Khabrain Newspaper Press. IBL Sukkur.

Plot No. 17/18, Block 27, Gulshan e Nawaz, Town Hyderabad. IBL Tando Adam.
Opposite D3 Hotel, Bypass Road. IBL Timmergara.

House No. 5, Street No. 2,Mohala Roshan Park, Canal Road. IBL Toba Tek Singh.
Street No.1, Green Town Ghatiya Road Wah Garden. IBL Wah Cantt.

DISTRIBUTION WAREHOUSES ADDRESSES

Lahore

Lahore, 131/3, Quaid-e-Azam Industrial Estate Gate - 4, Near Fine Chowk, Kot
Lakhpat, Lahore.

34. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of directors of the Group and authorised for
issue on September 29, 2020.

&

-

S

~

Syed Qaisar Abbas
Chief Executive Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding

As of June 30, 2020

. Number of Shares

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Held Percentage

Directors & their spouse 11 576,050 0.63%

Associated Companies, undertaking and related parties 2 | 88,200,462 96.08%

Executives 1 142 0.00%

Public Sector Companies & Corporations 2 14,029 0.02%
Banks, DFlIs, NBFCs, insurance companies, takaful,

modarbas,pension funds 2 220,303 0.24%

Mutual Funds 0 0 0.00%

Foreign Companies 1 8,500 0.01%

General Pubic Foreign 1 1,000 0.00%

General Public Local 1,012 2,662,267 2.90%

Others 11 117,227 0.13%

Total 1,043 | 91,800,000 100%

. Number of hares

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders SHeI d Percentage

International Brands Limited 1 | 88,200,462 96.08%

Number of Shareholders Shareholding’s Slab Total Shares Held

470 1 to 100 9,959

172 101 to 500 64,240

132 501 to 1000 120,172

167 1001 to 5000 451,997

42 5001 to 10000 323,944

12 10001 to 15000 147,000

13 15001 to 20000 228,200

8 20001 to 25000 181,250

4 25001 to 30000 109,531

1 35001 to 40000 36,000

5 40001 to 45000 209,275

3 45001 to 50000 140,975

2 50001 to 55000 103,300

2 65001 to 70000 133,950

1 70001 to 75000 73,000

1 80001 to 85000 83,200

1 100001 to 105000 100,750

1 105001 to 110000 109,125

1 110001 to 115000 114,950

1 135001 to 140000 136,200

1 165001 to 170000 169,950

1 215001 to 220000 219,570

1 335001 to 340000 336,750

1 88195001 to 88200000 88,196,712

1043 91,800,000
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Pattern of Shareholding

As of June 30, 2020

S. No. Folio No./CDS Name of No. of No. of %
Account No. Shareholders Shareholders  shares

Directors And Their Spouse(S) And Minor Children

1 596 RASHID ABDULLA 1 45,475 0.05
2 882 MR. RASHID ABDULLAH 1 29,750 0.03
3 03277-11384 RASHID ABDULLA 1 169,950 0.19
4 817 ZUBAIR PALWALA 1 4,250 0.00
5 03277-93293 ZUBAIR RAZZAK PALWALA 1 19,950 0.02
6 689 SHAKILA RASHID 1 12,325 0.01
7 818 SYED NADEEM AHMED 1 4,250 0.00
8 01826-102244 HASAN TARIQ KHAN 1 83,200 0.09
9 03277-20909 ASAD ABDULLA 1 68,450 0.07
10 03277-21385 AYAZ ABDULLA 1 136,200 0.15
11 05116-25660 SYED QAISER ABBAS NAQVI 1 2,250 0.00
11 576,050 0.63
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
1 01826-88492 International Brands Limited 1 3,750 0.00%
2 03277-2937 International Brands Ltd. 1 88,196,712 96.07%
2 88,200,462 96.08%
Executives
1 854 Sharig Ahmed (R-1) 1 142 0.00%
1 142 0.00%
Banks, DFls, NBFCs, insurance companies, takaful, modarbas,pension funds
1 00083-36 Idbl (Icp Unit) 1 14,025 0.02%
2 03277-1651 First Udl Modaraba 1 219,570 0.24%
3 03277-78335 Trustee National Bank Of
Pakistan Employees
Pension Fund 1 733 0.00%
4 03889-28 National Bank Of Pakistan 1 4 0.00%
4 234,332 0.26%
Foreign Companies
1 00521-700 Deutsche Bank
Ag London Branch 1 8,500 0.01%
1 8,500 0.01%
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Pattern of Shareholding

As of June 30, 2020

Others
1 812 NAEEM'S SECURITIES (PVT) LTD. 17,000 0.02
2 03277-82127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK
OF PAKISTAN EMP
BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 26 0.00
3 03525-87235 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 1 0.00
4 04085-24 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED 8,000 0.01
5 04317-11261 IQBAL ADAMJEE TRUST 20,500 0.02
6 04341-3265 RAO SYSTEMS (PVT.) LTD. 8,000 0.01
7 10470-29 GPH SECURITIES (PVT.) LTD. 3,000 0.00
8 16857-26 MRA SECURITIES
LIMITED - MF 41,700 0.05
9 16923-27 N. U. A. SECURITIES
(PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 10,000 0.01
10 17236-20 TIME SECURITIES (PVT.)
LIMITED - MF 7,500 0.01
11 17509-26 TRUST SECURITIES &
BROKERAGE LIMITED - MF 1,500 0.00
11 117,227 0.13%
General Public Foreign
1 1,000 0.00%
1 1,000 0.00%
General Public Local
1,012 2,662,287 2.90%
1,012 2,662,287 2.90%
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FORM OF PROXY

Company Secretary

UNITED BRANDS LIMITED Please quote:
1st Floor, One IBL Centre, No. of shares held.
Block No. 7 & 8, DMMCHS, Folio No.

Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

I/We, of , holding Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC)/Passport No. and being a member of UNITED BRANDS LIMITED, hereby
appoint of , holding CNIC/Passport
No. , or failing him/her hereby appoint of

, holding CNIC/Passport No. , as my/our proxy

to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday,
October 27, 2020, at 02:00 pm and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand/seal this day of , 2020

Witnesses:

1. Signature
Name
Address
CNIC/Passport No.

2. Signature
Name
Address
CNIC/Passport No.

Signature
Rupee five
revenue
stamp
Notes:
° A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company may appoint any

person as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. The proxy shall have the right to attend,
speak and vote in place of the shareholder appointing him/her at the meeting. A proxy must be a member
of the Company.

° The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the Shareholder or by his/her Attorney, duly
authorised in writing and person appointed proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the

company.

° Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office or Shares Registrar
not less than 48 hours before the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

o CDC shareholders and their proxies are requested to attach an attested photocopy of their CNIC or

Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.
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